Public Document Pack

eeds

CITY COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT PLAN PANEL

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Tuesday, 1st March, 2016 at 1.30 pm

MEMBERSHIP

D Congreve C Campbell B Anderson T Leadley
(Chair) J Procter

M Coulson

C Gruen

R Lewis

C Macniven

J McKenna

N Walshaw

Agenda compiled by: Head of Forward Planning and
H Gray Implementation:

Governance Services David Feeney

Telephone: 24 74355 Tel: 0113 24 74539

Produced on Recycled Paper



AGENDA

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and
public will be excluded)

(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting)

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:-

RESOLVED - That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:




Item Ward Item Not Page
No Open No
3 LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.
(The special circumstance shall be specified in the
minutes).
4 DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
INTERESTS
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
6 MINUTES 1-8
To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
held 19t January 2016 as a correct record
(Copy attached)
Burmantofts AIRE VALLEY LEEDS AREA ACTION PLAN 9-
and Richmond 144
Hill; City and To consider a report of the Chief Planning Officer
Hunslet; which provides a summary of the responses
Garforth and received to the publication consultation on the Aire
Swillington; Valley Leeds Area Action Plan (AVLAAP). The
Middleton main issues raised in the representations to the
Park; plan are discussed in detail within the report,
Rothwell; together with options for consideration in
Temple determining how the council should respond.
Newsam

(Report attached)

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting will be held on 5t
April 2016 at 1.30pm




Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to
see or hear the proceedings either as they take place (or later) and
to enable the reporting of those proceedings. A copy of the
recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the front
of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties— code of practice

a)

b)

Any published recording should be accompanied by a
statement of when and where the recording was made, the
context of the discussion that took place, and a clear
identification of the main speakers and their role or title.

Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a
way that could lead to misinterpretation or
misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments made
by attendees. In particular there should be no internal
editing of published extracts; recordings may start at any
point and end at any point but the material between those
points must be complete




Agenda Iltem 6

Development Plan Panel
Tuesday, 19th January, 2016
PRESENT: Councillor D Congreve in the Chair

Councillors B Anderson, C Campbell,
M Coulson, C Gruen, P Gruen, T Leadley,
R Lewis, J McKenna, J Procter and
N Walshaw
16 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents
There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents

17 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
No exempt information was contained within the agenda

18 Late Items
No formal late items of business were added to the agenda

19 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
No declarations of pecuniary interests were made.

20 Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor C Macniven. The Chair
welcomed Councillor P Gruen to the meeting as substitute.

21 Minutes
RESOLVED- That the minutes of the Development Plan Panel meetings held
on 16" and 26" June 2015 be approved.

22 Site Allocations Plan and Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan - Initial
Report of Consultation
The Chief Planning Officer submitted an Initial Report on the Consultation of
the Publication draft Site Allocations Plan (SAP) and Aire Valley Leeds Area
Action Plan (AVLAAP) consultation, which closed on 16th November 2015.
This matter was linked to another report on the agenda which summarised the
issues emerging from the consultation and the next steps in taking the Plans
forward to subsequent stages. (Minute 23 refers)

The Head of Forward Planning & Implementation and the Deputy Chief
Planning Officer presented the report and highlighted the consultation
arrangements, distribution of consultation material and events held in each of
the 11 Housing Market Characteristic Areas (HMCA's) designated within the
Site Allocation Plan (SAP). In presenting the report, the following key issues
were highlighted:

e The use of interactive materials - interactive mapping and an on-line
comments form were available along with guidance notes on the approach the
Planning Inspector was likely to take. This model would be used as a best
practice example for future consultations

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th February, 2016

Page 1



23

The submissions often commented on several issues which required collating
across several themes

Approximately 10,000 responses had been received

The comments received during the process from respondents on terminology
and the format of the on-line comments form had been noted

The Panel considered the following matters during discussions:

The breadth of the consultation pre-notification

The location of HMCA events and whether these had reflected smaller areas
within large HMCA'’s. Officers responded that in planning some of the events it
was appreciated that some HMCA'’s were significant in area and included a
variety of smaller communities. All plans were available at the events (both
Publication Plan documents and for HMCA areas) and a number of general
events had been held in the central location of the Civic Hall

Engagement with Neighbourhood Planning Groups. Support had been offered
by officers to both Neighbourhood Planning Groups and to ward Members in
their own meetings with local residents.

The ICT issues encountered by some respondents. The Panel noted the
response that the ICT capabilities had been tested prior to on-line publication
and independent software had been utilised to ensure stability.

The Central Government guidance which advised the public to petition local
authorities if they felt that their local authority had incorrectly calculated the
housing allocation in the UDP/Core Strategy. The SAP consultation would
have been seen by some as an opportunity to raise the issue of housing
allocations.

The status of the consultation held in the Outer North East HMCA, in the light
of the withdrawal of the Headley Hall site by the developers.

The impact of the recent flooding on the sites identified for future housing
Recognition for the engagement with the Traveller community

RESOLVED - That having considered the initial Report of Consultation on the
Publication draft Site Allocations Plan (SAP) and Aire Valley Leeds Area
Action Plan (AVLAAP), the Panel noted the outcomes as set out in the
submitted report

Site Allocations Plan and Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan - Emerging
Issues and Next Steps

The Chief Planning Officer submitted an initial overview of the emerging
issues and next steps arising from the consultation on the Publication draft
Site Allocations Plan (SAP) and Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan
(AVLAAP).

This report accompanied the earlier Report of Consultation on the Plans on
the agenda (Minute 22 refers)

The Head of Forward Planning & Implementation and the Deputy Chief
Planning Officer presented the report, highlighting the following issues in
respect of the Site Allocation Plan (SAP):

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th February, 2016

Page 2



e The task of assembling the 9,787 consultation responses in a consistent
format so that the comments can be interrogated was about 25% complete

e The nature and relevance of the comments received was an issue

e The 'soundness of the Plan' was a key issue which would be presented to the
Panel in due course

e A number of parties wished to view all the responses. A redacted version
would be available once the responses had been assembled. It was advised
that this task would take some time to complete and that the first priority was
to ensure that all of the submissions were entered into the database

e Since consultation had commenced, some site capacities had changed (such
as the withdrawal of the Headley Hall site in the Outer North East and
proposed Burberry development in the Inner City HMCAS). A review of the
figures would therefore be undertaken to review the overall position.

e New sites identified through the consultation would need to be assessed,
together with potential increases in site capacities.

In respect of the Aire Valley Area Action Plan (AVAAP):

e The current position in respect of the developers view of the deliverability of
the housing allocation at the Skelton Gate site

e The requests received to increase housing capacity on two sites at
Bridgewater Road and the former Tetley Brewery site and the suggestion that
increasing the allocation on these two sites could potentially compensate for
any reduction to the allocation at Skelton Gate

e The current position in respect of the Haigh Park Road site

Additionally, Members views were sought on the future presentation of the
detailed information to the Panel - a template was included at Appendix 1 of
the report for comment and consideration

Finally, the projected timetable for progression of the SAP and AVAAP was
highlighted, which included the requirement for Scrutiny and Executive Board
involvement. Members’ views were sought on whether those aspects of the
Plans which attracted no comment could be progressed quickly, which would
allow the Panel more time to concentrate on the elements which had attracted
representation.

The Panel also noted the suggestion that, in order to expedite matters, the
AVAAP process could be dealt with separately to the SAP, with the assurance
that any matters which had been flagged for further consideration would be
dealt with appropriately.

Members recognised the volume of work to be undertaken and made the
following comments:

e The need for Panel Members and ward Councillors to receive early
notification of new and emerging sites in order to support their work with local
residents

¢ Noted the comments received by house builders

e The current status of the Outer North East HMCA, which one Member
identified as a possibly requiring re-consultation on the available options given

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th February, 2016

Page 3



24

the withdrawal of the Headley Hall site by the owner. An indicative timetable
for that work was requested

Timetable for the availability of information and whether an indicative
Inspection timetable could be provided by the Planning inspectorate.

Whether all Councillors would have access to all the documentation or purely
related to their ward and whether the information would be open to the public
A request that emerging new sites should be presented to DPP as soon as
possible for early consideration in order that sites could be added or
disregarded to the Plan process

The weight to be afforded the emerging SAP and AVAAP during the planning
application process. In response, the Legal Adviser clarified (by reference to
the NPPF) that the further advanced through the adoption process, the more
weight could be attributed to the documents when considering planning
applications

Noted the concern expressed by one Member over the suggestion that, where
reductions to the housing allocation were suggested for one HMCA, another
HMCA area allocation could be increased to make up that loss, particularly in
respect of the city centre and Inner North East HMCAs. Additionally, the
comment that this approach was very different to the 2014 SHLAA approach
was noted.

Officers provided the following responses:

It was anticipated that the task of inputting the responses would be completed
during February 2016. Suggested new sites were continually emerging as
information was assessed and inputted from the responses. Once that was
complete a list could be provided and considered in the context of the HMCAs
The Outer North East HMCA would be treated as a special case due to the
change to the Plan. Initial discussions would be held with local Ward
Councillors, after which a report would be presented to DPP. Any emerging
proposals would be "pre-submission changes", at which point they would be
open to public consultation

Assurance was given that matters would be expedited where appropriate
Officers continued to liaise with the Planning Inspectorate on progress and the
timetable for submission; however the date of adoption was dependant on the
approach adopted by the Planning Inspector. Officers did however emphasise
the importance of keeping the process on track

RESOLVED -

To note the initial summary of the preliminary issues and key steps arising out
of the SAP and AVLAAP Publication consultation,

To support the suggested approach to progress the AVLAAP in advance of
the SAP

To note the timescales for the SAP and the suggested pro-forma for
presentation of conclusions of the analysis of the representations at further
DPP meetings as outlined.

Planning Application Decisions in the context of emerging Plans

The Chief Planning Officer submitted a report in response to issues raised by
Members concerning decisions taken on planning applications when
development plan allocations are under preparation. The report explored this
theme with particular reference to a recent planning permission for residential

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th February, 2016

Page 4



development of a site at Scott Lane, Morley (AKA Hub 62, Bruntcliffe Road,
reference 14/06825/0T) which was previously identified for employment use
in the Site Allocations Plan (SAP) Publication Draft.

The report reiterated the Local Planning Authority’s obligation to determine
planning applications as submitted and planning permission had been given in
November to develop the site for housing within this context. The report
outlined the evidence submitted with the planning application which had
tested the viability of employment development use more thoroughly.

The Planning Policy Team Leader presented the report and highlighted the
key issue of the differences of approach between national and local policy
frameworks. It was noted that the current SAP process was identifying new
sites for housing and would review the overall employment supply.

Discussion followed using the Morley site as a reference:

The weight given to the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and/or Local
Development Framework by plans panels. The Morley site was allocated and
utilised as employment land, however justification for a housing development
had been presented which appeared to run counter to both documents.

The concern that if plans panels took decisions which appeared to be contrary
to the Plans/Frameworks established through the Plan making process, then
plans panel could be seen to be preventing the Plans and/or Frameworks
working effectively.

Concern was also expressed that the UDP had suggested a 'green buffer'
between employment and residential use and the development of the site for
residential had removed that buffer

In response officers explained that, having considered detailed evidence from
the District Valuer, the plans panel had accepted that the Morley site was not
viable and hence not deliverable; and as such was not safeguarded by Policy
EC3 as set out in the report. In addition, officers reiterated that the Morley site
was regarded as an unusual one, as the site was owned by a housing
developer and evidence suggested that the site had not been utilised formally
for employment since the UDP had been adopted in 2001. The decision of the
plans panel was not regarded as having set a precedent.

Reference was made to that part of the National Planning Policy Framework

which suggested that "planning policies should avoid the long term protection
of sites allocated for employment use where there is no reasonable prospect
of a site being used for that purpose”

(Councillor Walshaw withdrew from the meeting for a short time at this point)

There was general acknowledgement that determination of planning
applications could not be delayed whilst overarching Frameworks/Plans were
developed

(Councillor J McKenna withdrew from the meeting for a short while at this point)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th February, 2016

Page 5



The Panel received assurance that any changes and/or permissions which
affected the 5 year land supply figures would be taken into account during the
Site Allocation Plan process.

RESOLVED - That the contents of the report and the comments made by the
Panel be noted

(Councillor Coulson left the meeting at this point)

25

Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment Update 2015

The Chief Planning Officer submitted a report providing an update on the
progress of the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA)
2015 Update. The 2015 Update utilised the Council’s previous methodology to
suggest that a considerable stock of deliverable land supply exists in Leeds.

The Data and GIS Team Leader presented the report, setting out a brief
history of the development of the SHLAA and giving context to the current
methodology and development of the 2015 SHLAA in the light of recent
Inspectors decisions and the upturn in confidence and growth in the housing
development industry.

It was noted that SHLAA Update 2015 had been sent to house builders for
comment (who had previously represented the industry as part of the SHLAA
Partnership). Members of the Panel were invited to attend future meetings of
the SHLAA Partnership - a group comprising of officers, Members and
developers - and to return any individual responses to the SHLAA by the
deadline of end of January 2016.

(Councillor C Gruen left the meeting at this point)

b)

The Panel broadly welcomed the report and went on to make the following
comments:

Noted the work undertaken by the SHLAA 2014 partnership and requested
that a similar partnership for the 2015 SHLAA be established quickly to
progress the process

Members also sought clarity on the information presented in Appendix 2 of the
report - schedule of SHLAA sites contained within the SAP. In response,
officers stated that "short term" anticipated development on site and build-out
within 5 years, medium term could refer to the build-out stage. The document
assumed a build-out rate as set out in the 2014 SHLAA of 50 dwellings per
annum per outlet, although the build out within the city centre was more
difficult to assess

RESOLVED -

That the contents of the report, and the comments made by Panel on the
SHLAA material be noted

To note that individual responses from Members on the material would be
welcomed prior to the end of January 2016 in order to tie into the timetable
provided to the house builders.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th February, 2016

Page 6



26 Date and Time of Next Meeting
RESOLVED - To note the date and time of the next meeting as 16t February
2016 at 1.30 pm.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 16th February, 2016

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Aagenda ltem

C T 11

Report authorstgawd Feeney (74539),
Adam Harvatt (78120), Paul Bingham
(78184)

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
Report to Development Plan Panel
Date: 1st March 2016

Subject: Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan

Are specific electoral Wards affected? X Yes [ ] No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): Burmantofts & Richmond Hill, City &
Hunslet, Garforth & Swillington, Middleton Park, Rothwell, Temple

Newsam

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and X Yes [ ] No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [ ] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [ ] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. This report provides a summary of the responses received to the publication
consultation on the Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan (AVLAAP). The main
issues raised in the representations to the plan are discussed in detail, with
options for consideration in determining how the council should respond.

Recommendation

2. Development Plan Panel is invited to:

i) Note the representations to the publication draft Aire Valley Leeds Area
Action Plan consultation, as set out in Schedules 1 and 2 in Appendix A;
and

i) Consider the issues set out in Section 3 of the report and provide

guidance on the initial officer responses to the representations.

Page 9

7



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

Purpose of this Report

At the Development Plan Panel meeting on the 19t January 2016, members
considered the report, ‘Site Allocations Plan (SAP) and Aire Valley Leeds Area
Action Plan (AVLAAP) — Emerging Issues and Next Steps’. This report provided
an initial and interim assessment of the consultation responses received to the
SAP and AVLAAP consultation. As part of the report, members received
information on the overall scale of the consultation response, together with an
explanation on emerging key issues. With regard to the AVLAAP, it was noted
that 61 submissions had been received, in relation to a range of technical, site
specific, as well as wider strategic issues.

Based on the report, the overall nature and level of response and subsequent
discussion, members were minded to proceed with the AVLAAP, in advance of
the SAP (whilst not seeking for the SAP to be held up), subject to further work
being undertaken into the issues raised through consultation and the implications
for the plan. The rationale for this approach was the desire to move the AVLAAP
through the submission process as quickly as practicable, in parallel to the
analysis and further consideration of the SAP submissions.

The purpose of this report is to provide members with further analysis of the
AVLAAP submissions and options for the way forward in relation to the issues
raised. It should be emphasised that overall there is considerable support for the
AVLAAP and the benefits this brings to Leeds and the city region as a whole.
The key issues identified in the DPP report of the 19" January and in this report,
relate to matters where potential options have been developed and members
guidance is sought. This will allow officers to prepare a schedule of proposed
modifications to the draft AVLAAP to return to a future DPP meeting.

Background Information

Context

On the 15t July 2015, Executive Board approved the Publication draft AVLAAP
for consultation. An eight week period of consultation was subsequently
undertaken between the 22" September and 16" November 2015. This
followed on from the consideration of the material by the Development Plan
Panel on the 20t May and earlier stages of public consultation on the emerging
plan. The plan is being taken forward within the strategic context of the Core
Strategy (adopted 14" November 2014), which sets out the overall scale and
distribution of housing and economic growth. The Core Strategy also reflects the
city council’s aspirations as part of the Best Council Plan and Vision for Leeds
(Community Strategy).

As indicated in the DPP report of the 19t January, the level of consultation
response to the AVLAAP cannot be fully verified until all the responses to the
SAP have been processed (over 70% have been processed at the time of
writing). At the deadline of submission of this report, the number of responses to
the AVLAAP was as follows:

Page 10



3.0

On line: 30

Email: 36
Paper: 2
Total: 68
Main Issues

Schedule of representations to the draft AVLAAP consultation

3.1

3.2

3.3

The schedules in Appendix A set out more details on the representations
received to the AVLAAP consultation. The general issue raised by the
representation is indicated, with further columns relating to plan soundness, legal
compliance and changes sought to the plan where relevant. There are two
schedules; Schedule 1 relates to site specific representations (published in site
reference order) and Schedule 2 general issues, including strategic policies and
background documents such as the sustainability appraisal. For the avoidance
of doubt, all views set out in the schedules are those of the submitter. It is
important to note that the schedules do not contain the full comments of
the submitters, but instead focus on their changes sought to the plan.

The following section sets out more details on some of the key issues contained
in the representations and discusses potential options for the council’s response.
The focus is on those representations which relate to requested amendments to
boundaries of housing or employment allocations and/or site capacities and
representations submitted by statutory consultees requesting changes to make
the plan sound.

It is expected the other representations in the Appendix A schedules not detailed
in this report can be resolved by minor changes to the plan or that officers will
recommend that no change should be made. A full schedule of officer responses
to the representations and recommended modifications to the plan will be
reported to a future DPP.

Housing sites

3.4

A number of representations have been submitted relating to the housing
allocations proposed in the draft AVLAAP which could have a significant impact
on the housing capacities identified in the plan. These are discussed in more
detail below.

Skelton Gate (AV111, 99.3 hectares, East HMCA)

3.5

3.5

The Skelton Gate site is proposed as a major housing allocation (2,619
dwellings) located to the east of M1 Junction 45. The draft AVLAAP allocation
included a food store in a local centre, through school (2FE primary schools and
4 FE secondary school) and allows for up to 10,000 sgm of offices.

70.8 hectares of the site is allocated for employment in the UDP (referred to as
the “existing development site”) with a further 28.5 hectares of land to the south

Page 11



3.6

3.7

3.8

currently designated as Green Belt (“the Green Belt land”). The existing
development site has two separate land owners. Templegate Developments
control the majority of the site including all the Green Belt land. Extra MSA have
a 100+ year lease on a parcel of land to the west of the existing development site
(10.5 hectares lies within the proposed allocation). Plan 1 (Appendix B) shows
the designations and ownership information in more detail.

The promoters of both parcels of land have submitted separate representations
to the draft AAP, highlighting that the stated scale of housing is not deliverable,
as follows:

e Templegate support the housing allocation but state the 2,619 dwelling
site capacity is unrealistic given physical site constraints which prevent
housing development on parts of their land. They estimate 1,700 — 1,800
dwellings on their landholding. The higher figure is based on a primary
school (with lower land take) rather than a through school being
developed on the site.

e Extra MSA object to the housing allocation including their land. They
maintain the allocation is not available for housing and should be allocated
for a Motorway Service Area (MSA). They also argue that even if the land
were to be made available for housing, its maximum capacity would be
168 dwellings after taking into account known physical constraints to
housing development on the land.

Members should note that a planning application has been submitted by
Templegate for their part of the housing allocation (excluding Green Belt land) for
up to 1,100 dwellings, food store, local centre, green space and primary school
(with land safeguarded for a secondary school which would reduce the housing
capacity). Extra MSA are pursuing a proposal for a MSA on their land and
expect to submit a planning application in April. Both developers made pre-
application presentations to City Plans Panel on 17 December 2015. Panel
supported both schemes in principle, subject to further consideration of detailed
matters, including design and access, and on the basis that the two developers
work together on these matters.

Initial officer response

The methodology underpinning the draft AVLAAP site capacity estimate of 2,619
dwellings for Skelton Gate was set out in the report to the 13 January 2015
Development Plan Panel. A net density of 40 dwellings per hectare (dph) was
assumed for the existing development site and 35 dph for the Green Belt land,
consistent with the methodology used for the Leeds SHLAA. Within this
calculation, allowance was made for the inclusion of non-residential uses
(through school, local centre, food store and a small area for office
development), before a standard discount of 25% to convert the density to a
gross figure (allowing for provision of green space, distributor roads etc). The
split in capacity between the three parcels of land, using this methodology is
estimated as follows:

Page 12



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Templegate land (existing development site) 1,594 dwellings

Templegate land (Green Belt land) 747 dwellings
Extra MSA land (existing development site) 278 dwellings'
Total site capacity 2,619 dwellings

It is known that this land has a number of development constraints which result
in parts of the site not being suitable for housing development. These include
motorway noise, ground conditions associated with previous open casting
activities, electricity pylons and lines and a small area of land at higher risk of
flooding. These constraints are recognised in the draft AVLAAP which sets out a
series of site requirements to address constraints and ensure that a suitable
housing development can be delivered at the site.

The two developers have submitted further information on the constraints
through their submission to the plan consultation. Templegate have also
submitted detailed masterplanning work in support of their planning application.
It is the view of both developers that the physical site constraints, alongside
requirements to deliver other uses that support the housing (school, local centre,
green space) dictate that a lower proportion of the site is suitable for housing
development, than the draft AVLAAP estimate of capacity.

Templegate land (existing development site)

The masterplan supporting Templegate’s planning application concerns a total
area of 26.34 hectares to be developed for housing within the existing
development site. This allows for provision of a food store, local centre, through
school and supporting infrastructure. The remainder of the land is identified as
formal green space, green infrastructure and set aside as flood plain and/or
utilised for sustainable drainage systems. For comparison, the draft AVLAAP
capacity estimate assumed about 40 hectares of developable land for this part of
the site. It is the extent of green areas in the masterplan which differs most
significantly from the assumptions made in the draft AVLAAP, but this is a
response to the site-specific constraints particularly ground conditions, flood plain
area, land beneath power lines and important ecological habitats reducing the
land area suitable for housing. Given the detailed masterplanning and site
assessment (including Sustainable Environmental Assessment) work undertaken
by the developer, it is accepted that their general view that the site capacity
should be reduced to reflect site-specific constraints is valid.

Within the Templegate part of the existing development site, the developer
estimates the capacity to be approximately 1,000 dwellings, assuming land is
safeguarded to provide a through school. The planning application refers to
1,100 dwellings but this would be on the basis of providing only a primary school.
Children’s Services have provided further evidence that there is a forecast
shortage of secondary school places by 2020 before the new development is
taken into account.

" The 13 January 2015 Panel Report suggested that a maximum of 344 dwellings could be developed on
the MSA land but this did not account for development of other uses. This has been assumed on a pro-
rata basis across the two sites.

Page 13



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

Whilst the argument for a lower site capacity is broadly accepted, the
development is still required to comply with Core Strategy policies H3 (Housing
Mix) and H4 (Density). At around 38 dph (assuming capacity of 1,000) the
current scheme falls marginally below the Core Strategy minimum density of 40
dph and the proposed mix of units in the outline application provides less than
the minimum number of two bed units and zero one bed units. With only a minor
change in the mix (which for example could include smaller units suitable for
older people), it is considered the standard density is appropriate to apply to all
parts of the site which are suitable for housing. A capacity of 1,054 dwellings is
derived using the developer’s assessment and calculations on the area’s suitable
for housing development (26.34 ha) and applying the standard density multiplier:

Capacity for Templegate land in the existing development site: 26.34 ha x
40 dph = 1,054 dwellings

This represents a reduction of 540 dwellings compared to the capacity used in
the draft AVLAAP, but 54 more dwellings than the capacity implied by the
developer.

Extra MSA land (existing development site)

If the principle of the MSA proposal is accepted, then any housing capacity
attributed to that part of site AV111 will need to be removed. A notional
reduction in capacity of 278 dwellings, compared to the existing capacity
calculation.

Extra MSA’s submission also argues that were the site to come forward for
housing (which they don’t support), the actual capacity realised would be lower
than the above estimate. Again, this is because of the need to take into account
site constraints (ground conditions and power lines in this case). In the
submitter’s opinion this reduces the developable area suitable for housing
development to 4.75 ha and their estimate of the site capacity is 168 dwellings
(density of 35 dph).

If the standard SHLAA density multiplier of 40 dph is applied to the net
developable area indicated by the submitter, the capacity calculation would be as
follows: 4.75 ha x 40 dph = 190 dwellings

It is considered that the Extra MSA land remains suitable for housing
development, but also accepted that any capacity attributed to the land should
be reduced to take account of site constraints and areas of land that cannot be
developed for housing.

However, it is clear from the Extra MSA submission that the land is not available
for housing development whilst they are pursuing the MSA proposal through the
planning process. As stated previously City Plans Panel gave a favourable
reception to the pre-application presentation in December 2015. Construction of
an MSA would remove any potential housing capacity from this part of the site.

The housing capacity apportioned to this site should be either zero (if an MSA is
constructed) or 190 dwellings. Based on the outcome of the City Plans Panel
pre-application presentation and evidence presented that the land is not

Page 14



3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

available for housing, the initial view is to assume a housing capacity of zero for
the land.

MSA allocation

It does not automatically follow that the AAP should make an allocation for an
MSA on the land. There is no strategic planning requirement for the council to
identify a MSA site in Leeds. No other options for an MSA have been
considered by the council as part of the plan preparation process nor has there
been a call for sites exercise to identify alternative locations. Proposing an
allocation could significantly delay the progress of plan preparation and require
further consultation before plan submission. As alternative options for MSA sites
may lie outside the AAP boundary there would need to be further consideration
whether the allocation would fall within the scope of the AVLAAP. A MSA
proposal would also lie outside the scope of the SAP. It is for the developer to
justify the proposal through submission of a planning application where the
proposal can be considered against relevant national and development plan
policies.

Draft Policy SG1 of the AAP allows for non-housing uses within the allocation to
support delivery of the main housing use, something Extra MSA argue their
scheme will contribute towards. The key is to achieve a holistic development
across the site which delivers a new community in this location. Subject to
removal of the current wording in the supporting text (para 4.6.37) explicitly ruling
out an MSA, it is considered that the developer could justify their proposal
satisfies the criteria in Policy SG1 for an acceptable non housing use supporting
the main housing development (see Appendix C for extract of Policy SG1 and
supporting text). The housing allocation could be retained, with its capacity
estimate amended to reflect the reduced number of houses that could be
developed. Alternatively, a housing and mixed use allocation may be more
appropriate, reflecting the potential for non-housing uses on the site.

It may also be appropriate to delete specific reference to an allowance for office
uses up to 10,000 sg m (criterion 2 of Policy SG1) as this was inserted as a
potential buffer between housing uses and the motorway (which could in effect
be replaced by an MSA). This may have a positive benefit in terms of transport
impacts and is not required to meet the Core Strategy office development target.
Any proposals for a small element of office use could be assessed against
criterion 3 of Policy SG1.

Templegate site (Green Belt land)

No further evidence has been provided to justify a change in the capacity of the
Green Belt part of the land, although the submission of Templegate implies a
figure of about 700 dwellings. It is proposed that this remains at 747 dwellings
consistent with the standard density multiplier used in the Leeds SHLAA. This
represents no change in the assumptions made in the draft AVLAAP.

Summary of options for revising the housing capacity at Skelton Gate

Table 1 below provides a comparison between the housing capacity estimates.
Option 1 represents the current position set out in the draft AAP. Option 2
provides a revised capacity based on the developable area and includes the

Page 15



Extra MSA land within the housing allocation. Option 3 is the same as Option 2,
except it is assumed that the Extra MSA land will provide no housing.

Table 1: Summary of options for Site AV111 — Skelton Gate

Options Existing Existing Green Belt AV111 Change
development | development land total from
site site (Extra (Templegate) | capacity Draft
(Templegate) MSA) AVLAAP
with through
school?
1. Draft AVLAAP
(Sept 2015) 1,594 278 747 2,619 -
2. Revised capacity
based on
submitter’s
developable
area and SHLAA 1,054 190 747 1,991 -628
densities
(including Extra
MSA land
3. Revised capacity
based on
submitter’s
developable
area and SHLAA 1,054 0 747 1,801 -818
densities
(excluding Extra.
MSA land)

3.26 Given the additional evidence presented by the submitters and set out in
this report, the initial officer recommendation is that the site capacity is
amended to reflect Option 3. This will give a revised capacity of 1,801
dwellings (a reduction of 818 dwellings from the draft AVLAAP). Member’s
view are sought.

Suggested increases in housing capacity on two sites

3.27

The developers of two sites proposed as allocations for housing and mixed use

in the Publication draft AVLAAP have indicated that the standard housing
capacities for their sites are likely to be too low and have sought further
consideration by the council. These are:

e Bridgewater Road (Site AV40, capacity 425) - suggested increase to 600

units

e Former Tetley Brewery Site (Part of Site AV94, current capacity 830) — no
capacity indicated, but a suggestion that it could be substantially higher)

2 Providing a primary school rather than a through school would increase the site capacity by 88
dwellings under each option. This is not supported by Children’s Services so has been excluded from the

options.

Page 16




3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

Bridgewater Road North (Site AV40, 11.2 hectares, East HMCA)

Bridgewater Road North is a brownfield site lying between the Cross Green
Industrial Estate and the River Aire. It is proposed as a housing allocation in the
draft AVLAAP.

Representations received from the site leaseholder DB Schenker support the
housing allocation, but seek removal of the buffer shown between this allocation
and the Natural Resources & Waste Local Plan (NRWLP) rail freight allocation
on land to the south (see Plan 2, Appendix B). They argue the buffer will be
delivered within the adjacent NRWLP allocation. The buffer is a specified
requirement in the NRWLP. Consequently, a buffer on the AVLAAP allocation is
unnecessary. They suggest this change could result in an increase in the
housing capacity of the site (estimated as 425 dwellings) to 600 dwellings.

Officers agree that the required buffer between housing and rail freight uses can
be provided on the NRWLP allocation land, but consideration also needs to be
given to a buffer from existing industrial activities in the area if the housing use is
developed before the rail uses. The capacity of the site has been reassessed
using the standard multiplier approach (the site falls partly in the edge of centre
and urban area density zones?) set out in the SHLAA methodology and was
assessed to be broadly consistent. The capacity had not been reduced to take
account of the buffer.

However, noting the submitter argues the capacity could be increased, officers
have identified a potential option to base the capacity based solely on the edge
of centre density multiplier (65 dwelling per hectare net or around 49 per hectare
gross when provision of open space is taken into account). This density is
considered appropriate for a site in this location within walking distance of the
city centre. It could deliver a range of dwelling types and sizes consistent with
Core Strategy policies. For comparison, the Yarn Street development on the
opposite bank of the river to the site was developed at 61 dwellings per hectare
gross. This includes a mix of houses/flats and unit sizes, but no public green
space.

Using the higher density multiplier the capacity of the site would be 546
dwellings. This is lower than the submitter has suggested, but as yet the council
has not been provided with any supporting evidence (such as a masterplan) to
justify the unusually high capacity for the site’s location. Without such
information it is not possible to assess whether that capacity can be delivered
consistent with the Core Strategy policies on housing mix and other site
requirements such as provision of green space and avoidance of the small areas
of the site at higher risk of flooding. Officers have sought further information from
the submitter.

The initial officer recommendation is to increase the housing capacity of
site AV40 to 546 dwellings (an increase of 121 dwellings) in response to

3 The standard density multiplier is 65 dwellings per hectare (dph) in edge of centre locations and 40 dph
in the urban area. The capacity is then discounted by 25% on sites over 2 hectares to allow for provision
of green space and other uses supporting the housing.

Page 17



3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

this representation. Member’'s guidance on adopting this approach is
sought.

Former Tetley Brewery sites, Part of the South Bank Planning Statement Area
(Site AV94, 11 hectares (former brewery site only)

This area is identified in the draft AVLAAP as a broad location with an
opportunity to deliver new homes, office development, a new city centre park and
other commercial uses. The area includes the former Tetleys Brewery site, Asda
House and the site at New Lane (see Plan 3 in Appendix B). It represents one of
the most significant growth and development opportunities in the city, but there
are uncertainties associated with the availability, timing and future uses,
principally related to the location of the HS2 route and station. At the time of
publication of the draft AAP, the consultation document (published January 2013)
showed the HS2 station at New Lane. Assessment of the capacity of the area
for housing and office development was estimated on land within the area likely
to be available for development within the plan period.

Under draft AVLAAP Policy AVL7, the housing capacity of the site was estimated
at 825 dwellings. This comprised of:

e 730 dwellings on SHLAA site 2009 (Former Tetley Brewery site, 11
hectares)

e 95 dwellings on the about 1 ha of SHLAA site 2011 (New Lane) which lies
outside the operational area of HS2 shown on the 2013 consultation
material.

Capacity for 73,500 sq m of office development on the site is also identified in
the area under Policy AVL3.

Vastint (part of the Ikea group) are the new owners of the former Tetley’s
Brewery site. Their representation questions the housing capacity for the South
Bank Planning Statement Area (AV94) stating: “initial work undertaken by Vastint
indicates that the capacity of the Brewery site alone could significantly exceed
(particularly for housing) that quoted in the draft AVLAAP”. They contend that
the sustainable and accessible location of the site justify higher density
development. They compare the site to other schemes such as Brewery Wharf
and Leeds Dock in the vicinity of the site.

The current capacity assumption on the former Tetley Brewery land is 730
dwellings and 66,000 sq m of office floorspace and a contribution of land towards
the development of the City Park. The housing capacity calculation made an
assumption that the area of land assumed for housing would be developed at a
density of 175 dph. This is 50% of the standard SHLAA density multiplier for the
city centre (350 dph), and is based on the capacity approach to larger sites (over
2 hectares) outside the traditional core of the city centre. This was a figure
based on the type of development that was expected to come forward in fringe
city centre locations at the time the SHLAA methodology was devised in
2008/09.

Page 18



3.38

3.39

3.40

3.41

3.42

3.43

However, with the site now in the hands of a developer who has undertaken
further analysis of the site’s potential to deliver residential development and on
the basis of their representations asserting that the site’s capacity is too low, it
may be appropriate to apply the standard SHLAA density multiplier for the city
centre (350 dph) on this site. The council approved a housing scheme at the
Dandarra site (Ref 14/04641) in Holbeck Urban Village for 744 dwellings on a 1.9
hectares site representing a gross density of 392 dph which provides evidence of
the density of an acceptable development on a site in a similar location in the
south of the city centre. It should be noted that the density is only to be applied
to the housing part (assumed to be 4.4 hectares, half of the developable area) of
a much wider site area of 11 hectares, which will make a contribution to the City
Park. A scheme could come forward which takes up a larger area of land at a
lower density within the wider mix of uses. The revised housing capacity is
recalculated as follows: 4.4 ha x 350 dph = 1,540 dwellings

This would represent an increase of 810 dwellings on the estimated
housing capacity of the Tetley Brewery site in the draft AVLAAP and would
increase the overall capacity of the Site AV94 to 1,635 dwellings. Member’s
guidance on adopting this approach is sought.

Alternative sites for housing submitted in consultation

There have been no new housing sites submitted to the AVLAAP consultation.
However, a further submission has been made by Towngate who own the Haigh
Park Road site in Stourton. Site AV100 was previously rejected as a potential
housing site in the Publication Draft AVL AAP for a wide range of reasons.
Using the standard density multiplier, the capacity of the site is calculated as
1,144. The site lies within the East HMCA.

The 38.1 hectares site (see Plan 4 in Appendix B) encompasses an industrial
area which contains three sites allocated/safeguarded in the council’s adopted
Natural Resources and Waste Local Plan. This includes two canal wharf
designations (covering a total area of 6.9 hectares) which were adopted by the
council under revised policy Minerals 13 in September 2015. The site also
includes five employment sites identified and proposed in the draft AVLAAP,
covering a total area of approximately 6.8 hectares on vacant plots. The
remaining land is in use for a range of industrial and storage uses.

The submitter argues that the site should be considered as a longer term
housing opportunity which could start to deliver housing later in the Core
Strategy plan period and into the next plan period beyond 2028. Towngate
suggested a figure of around 100-200 units could be delivered in the latter part of
the plan period. The site is not available in the short to medium term due to
existing lease arrangements.

In order to count any contribution from the site within the plan period, the council
need to be satisfied that the site is suitable, available and deliverable within the
timescales stated. However, there are a number of concerns regarding the
suitability and deliverability of this site.

Page 19



3.44

3.45

3.46

3.47

3.48

The site lies in Flood Zone 3 (1:100 year risk or greater of flooding) according to
the Environment Agency’s published maps. Housing development in Flood Zone
3 must satisfy a flood risk sequential and exception test in order to be considered
suitable for allocation in a development plan. The council’s Flood Risk
Sequential and Exception Test, published as part of the evidence base
supporting the Publication Draft AAP, assessed the site as failing the Exception
Test because the sustainability benefits of the development (as demonstrated in
the Sustainability Appraisal) were not considered to outweigh flood risk. This
was in comparison to other sites in Flood Zone 3 in and on the edge of the city
centre offering highly accessible locations, close to existing facilities and
services.

In response to the previous rejection of the site for housing, the submitter has
undertaken a flood risk assessment. They have obtained revised flood risk
mapping data from the EA, modelled on the position post construction of the first
phase of the Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme between Hol Beck and Knostrop
weir (which includes removal of Knostrop Cut and construction of moveable
weirs and some walls in the city centre). This shows the site within the lower risk
Flood Zone 2 (between 1:100 and 1:1000 year risk).

However, in discussions with the EA they have been clear that they do not
support the use of preliminary flood maps yet to be checked and endorsed. The
EA will only accept evidence based on the validated published version for
planning purposes. New data needs to be fully verified by their engineers.
Furthermore, the EA have confirmed the draft data used in the submitter’s flood
risk assessment is to be reviewed following the December 2015 flood event in
Leeds, which affected this site. It is uncertain whether the flood zone will be
revised in relation to this and other sites. The new flood maps may not be
released until Summer.

In view of the current location of the site in Flood Zone 3 there is a strong
likelihood that the EA will object to a housing allocation on this land, given it
would increase the amount of housing proposed in the highest flood risk zone
when the housing target of 6,500 has already been met through identified sites
and allocations on other land. Members should note that the EA have not raised
an objection to the soundness of the draft AVLAAP.

In addition to flood risk, there are a number of other suitability and deliverability
issues in relation to this site:

e There are significant conflicts between the submitted site and the NRWLP
sites/allocations e.qg:

- The site includes two canal wharf designations recently adopted in August
2015

- The site is located in close proximity to a NRWLP strategic waste
allocation on the opposite side of the river corridor (see site 200 on plan
4). This allocation is currently located an acceptable distance from
existing residential uses

- The area is identified within an area of search for intermodal freight.

Page 20



3.49

3.50

As the NRWLP was recently adopted and the evidence base has not been
reviewed, there is no basis for the AVLAAP to reconsider allocations and
designation made through the NRWLP.

e The site is close to the Knostrop Waste Water Treatment Works. Yorkshire
Water previously raised concerns about housing options in proximity to the
sewage works due to likely complaints relating to odour.

¢ Including the NRWLP canal freight allocation, the reallocation of land for
housing would result in the loss of 9.6 hectares of land allocated for
employment and a further loss of over 20 hectares of land in existing
employment use. This would prejudice delivery of the Core Strategy target for
AVL to identify 250 hectares of land for employment as well as the district
wide target to identify 493 hectares. The draft AVLAAP identified a surplus of
only 6.2 hectares.

Based upon the above considerations, the initial view of officers is that the
AVLAAP should be not revised to include a housing allocation or reference to
potential for housing at Haigh Park Road, Stourton. The site is considered
unsuitable for housing on flood risk grounds using the EA’s published and
validated maps. A housing allocation undermines the council’s recently adopted
NRWLP which identifies strategic waste and sustainable freight transport sites
within and in close proximity to this site. There is a demonstrable need for the
site to make a contribution to the Core Strategy employment target. According to
the submitter, the site could only make a relatively small contribution, if any, to
housing delivery within the plan period.

Summary of initial officer recommendations on revised housing site capacities

Table 2 summarises the suggested revisions in housing site capacities referred
to in this report. This includes a potential reduction in capacity on Skelton Gate
(Site AV111) and increases in capacity on two sites; Bridgewater Road North
(Site AV40) and the South Bank Planning Statement Area (Site AV94). All
suggested revisions are based on further technical analysis of the site capacities
based on representations received to the draft AVLAAP.

Page 21



Table 2: Summary of initial officer recommendations on revised housing site

capacities
AAP HMCA Allocation | Publication Draft | Suggested Difference
Site AVL AAP officer capacity
Ref Capacity revisions in
response to
representations
AV40 East Housing 425 546 +121
AV94 City Mixed use 825 1,635 +810
Centre
AV111 | East Housing 2,619 1,801 -818
3.51 Table 3 summarises the overall change in housing capacity that would be

identified in the draft AVLAAP by HMCA and in total resulting from the above
revisions.

Table 3: Overall changes in housing capacity in AVL by HMCA based on initial
officer recommendations

HCMA Publication Draft AVL Suggested officer Difference
AAP capacity capacity revisions in
response to
representations

City Centre 2,459 3,269 +810
Inner Area 2,043 2,043 0
East Leeds 3,328 2,631 -697
Total 7,830 7,943 +113

3.52 There is an overall reduction in housing capacity in the East HMCA of 697
dwellings. This reflects a reduction in capacity at Skelton Gate (AV111) which is
only partially addressed by a smaller increase in capacity at the Bridgewater
Road North site (AV40) within the same HMCA. There are not considered to be
any suitable housing opportunities within the East HMCA in the AVLAAP area.
This includes the Haigh Park Road site at Stourton which is discussed in detail
above.

3.53

The option to increase the capacity (by 810 dwellings) at the former Tetley

Brewery site within the South Bank Planning Statement Area based on the
representation received from the site owner would broadly compensate for the

Page 22




3.54

loss of capacity at Skelton Gate. Over the plan area the suggested revisions
would increase the total housing capacity by 113 dwellings.

Members will note that the difference is not being fully made up in the same
HMCA. There will be an increase in housing numbers in the City Centre HMCA
and a reduction in the East HMCA. This was a concern raised at the 19 January
panel meeting. However, with the revisions, the capacity more accurately
reflects the quantity of housing likely to be delivered on all three sites taking into
account site-specific constraints and opportunities.

Employment sites

3.55

3.56

3.57

3.58

A number of representations have been submitted relating to the employment
allocations proposed in the draft AVLAAP. These are discussed in more detail
below:

Former Skelton Grange power station sites (NRWLP Site 200, AVLAAP Sites
AV67 and AV68)

A response has been submitted by the new owners of the site, Harworth Estates,
promoting a rail freight depot at the site served by a new rail spur provided from
the Leeds-Castleford railway line, south of Skelton Lake. They request that the
plan identifies the site as suitable for rail freight uses, amends the strategic
waste allocation (Site 200) made under the Natural Resources and Waste Plan
to allow greater flexibility of uses and that a minor amendment be made to the
boundary of the AAP (along the River Aire corridor) to incorporate the entire
proposal. The representation also requests a small extension of identified
general employment site AV68, to include all the developable part of the site.

In response, the initial officer view is that the extension to site AV68 should be
incorporated in the plan. This will increase the site area of the allocation by 1.87
hectares to a total of 9.17 hectares (the suggested change is shown on Plan 5 in
Appendix B). This additional land will make a small additional contribution to
meeting the Core Strategy employment land target. The revised boundary will
retain a green buffer along the north bank of the river.

As the NRWLP was recently adopted and the evidence base has not been
reviewed, there is no basis for the AVLAAP to reconsider allocations and
designations made through the NRWLP. Any future rail freight proposal on the
former Power Station land will be considered against relevant planning policies
and in principle such as use is not inconsistent with a general employment
allocation. The criteria set out under Policy WASTE 6 of the NRWLP would need
to be satisfied before release of a strategic waste site for non-waste related
purposes. There is no need to extend the boundaries of the AAP to reflect the
ownership of the submitter. The rail spur is already safeguarded under Policy
Minerals 13 of the NRWLP.

Skelton Grange Road East site (Site AV83)

Page 23



3.59

3.60

3.61

The Canals & River Trust have identified an inconsistency between the draft
AVLAAP and the NRWLP in that part of Site AV83 is included within the
boundary of a canal wharf allocation (Site 20) in the adopted NRWLP. Officers
agree that this inconsistency should be resolved by redrawing the boundary of
site AV83 to exclude any land within NRWLP Site 20 (as illustrated in Plan 6).
This inconsistency occurred because the extension to NRWLP Site 20 was only
adopted by the council in September 2015 (to reflect a planning permission that
had been granted for a wharf on the land) after the consultation material for the
draft AVLAAP had been prepared. This does not affect the overall quantity of
employment land identified in AVL because the canal wharf allocation
contributes toward the overall requirement.

Haigh Park Road, Stourton (Site AV100)

In addition to their submission supporting a housing proposal (see paras 3.40 to
3.49 and Plan 4), Towngate have indicated there may be potential to redevelop
parts of the land for employment uses as another option. This would be
supported in principle, except on land allocated for specific purposes in the
NRWLP. The draft AVLAAP identified the parcels of land on the site which are
currently vacant, but officers are in discussion with the developer to identify the
potential for redevelopment and whether the site can make a further contribution
to meeting employment land targets. It would be unusual to allocate occupied
buildings unless supported by specific proposals and evidence. Any positive
outcomes from further discussions will be reported back to a future DPP.

Potential revisions to employment sites

The initial officer recommendation is to:
e Extend the boundary of general employment allocation AV68 to the
revised boundary (as shown on Plan 5 in Appendix B)
e Amend the boundary of general employment allocation AV83 to
remove overlap with NRWLP site 20 (as shown on Plan 6 in Appendix
B).

Members are asked for the views on adopting these suggested changes.

Representations from statutory consultees

3.62

3.63

Detailed representations from a number of statutory consultees, including
Highways England, Historic England, the Coal Authority and the Environment
Agency, have been received. These raise a number of soundness and technical
issues which require further consideration.

Historic England

Historic England made a number of representations to the plan, some
supportive, but others seeking changes. The requested changes can be
summarised as follows:

Page 24



3.64

3.65

3.66

3.67

3.68

¢ Changes to the wording of site requirements on sites where development
may have an impact on the setting of heritage assets. This relates to a
number of proposed site specific allocations;

e Inclusion of statements relating to heritage assets in the plan vision and
objectives;

e Suggested changes to consideration of heritage assets in the
sustainability appraisal.

Officers agree with the changes Historic England have requested on site
requirements and making these changes would make the AVLAAP consistent
with the wording used in SAP. Officers support the suggested additions to vision
statements and objectives, unless this would lead to unnecessary repetition in
the plan, and are reviewing the sustainability appraisal methodology to ensure it
is consistent with legal requirements and fully addresses heritage assets.

Coal Authority

The Coal Authority objected on the grounds the council did not given adequate
consideration to land stability issues in assessing and proposing sites for
allocation.

In responding to the issues raised, officers have created a new sustainability
appraisal objective to acknowledge the high risk coal areas and the presence of
mining shafts. The highlighted risk at relevant sites will in turn trigger the need
for a site requirement in relation to the stability issue. If agreed, this change will
also apply to the Site Allocations Plan. It is considered that as a result of the
proposed change none of the proposed allocations will need to be removed from
the Plan.

Highways England

Highways England objected to several sites on the basis of the additional trips
the specific sites will generate on the national highway network. As a result of
requests from Highways England, officers have provided further clarification in
relation to the delivery of specific sites, including a housing trajectory to verify
and assist with Highways England’s modelling work. This also follows on from
previous detailed discussions held in October 2015. A meeting to discuss the
refined highways modelling work, specifically in regard to allocated and potential
land uses, trigger points, junction improvement capacities and possible site
specific requirements is to take place on 22 February 2016. Officers will report
back verbally on relevant outcomes of the meeting. It is considered unlikely that
the changes requested will result in sites being removed from the Plan.

Environment Agency

The Environment Agency confirmed in their response that the AVLAAP and
supporting evidence in the Flood Risk Sequential and Exceptions Test did not
raise any soundness issues. They did however, object in reference to the draft
flood maps illustrating the likely changes to the flood zones post implementation

Page 25



4.0

41

4.2

5.0
5.1
5.1.1

5.2.

5.2.1

5.3.
5.3.1

of the Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme. As the exception test did not rely on the
draft plans as evidence or justification for the proposed allocations, the reference
can be removed without any impact on the outcomes of the exceptions test.

Other considerations:

Based on the representations considered to date, there is nothing to indicate that
a major change to the plan will be necessary. If major changes are necessary
the council would need a further round of public consultation prior to submission
of the plan to the Secretary of State.

Until all the SAP responses have been logged into the system and checked,
there remains a chance that further representations to the AVLAAP are hidden
within SAP representations and have not yet been reviewed.

Corporate Considerations

Consultation and Engagement

The focus of this report has been to provide a summary of the representations
received to the formal publication draft consultation. A comprehensive Report of
Consultation will be finalised to accompany submission of the plan. The
consultation and engagement activity undertaken has been set within the context
of the LDF Regulations and the city council's Statement of Community
Involvement.

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

In the preparation of the AVLAAP, due regard has been given to Equality,
Diversity, Cohesion and Integration issues. This has included the completion of
EDCI Screening of the AVLAAP and meeting the requirements of the Strategic
Environmental Assessment Directive, which has meant that these Plans are
subject to the preparation of a Sustainability Appraisal. The purpose of such
Appraisals is to assess (and where appropriate strengthen) the document’s
policies, in relation to a series of social (and health), environmental and
economic objectives. As part of this process, issues of Equality, Diversity,
Cohesion and Integration, are embedded as part of the Appraisal’'s objectives.
The AVLAAP material follows on and reflects the approach set out in the Core
Strategy, which has also had the same regard to these issues.

Council Policies and City Priorities

The Core Strategy, the Publication Draft AVLAAP, play a key strategic role in
taking forward the spatial and land use elements of the Vision for Leeds and the
aspiration to be the ‘the Best City in the UK. Related to this overarching
approach and in addressing a range of social, environmental and economic
objectives, these Plans seek to implement key City Council priorities. These
include the Best Council Plan (2013-17) (in particular Objective 2: to ‘promote
sustainable and inclusive economic growth’) and Leeds Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy (2013-2015).

Page 26



54
5.4.1

54.2

5.5

5.5.1

5.6
5.6.1

6.0
6.1

Resources and value for money

The preparation of statutory Development Plan Documents or the Local Plan is a
necessary, but resource intensive process. This is due to the time and cost of
document preparation (relating to public consultation and engagement), the
preparation and monitoring of an extensive evidence base, legal advice and
Independent Examination. These challenges are compounded by the financial
constraints upon the public sector and resourcing levels, concurrent with new
technical and planning policy pressures arising from more recent legislation
(including the Community Infrastructure Levy and Localism Act). There are
considerable demands for officers, members and the community in progressing
the council’s Local Plan.

For the Local Development Framework (‘Local Plan’) to be as up to date as
possible, the council needs to produce the AVLAAP as quickly as practicable,
following adoption of its Core Strategy. This will provide value for money in that
the council, through the plan, will influence and direct where development
occurs. Without an up to date plan the ‘presumption in favour of sustainable
development’ by the Government means that any development in conformity with
national policy will be acceptable, regardless of any previous positions of the
authority, which could have implications in terms of resources and value for
money.

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

The AVLAAP will follow the statutory Development Plan process. The report is
not eligible for call-in as no decision is being taken.

Risk Management

Without up-to-date allocation plans, aspects of the existing UDP allocations will
become out of date and will not reflect or deliver the Core Strategy policies and
proposals (including district wide requirements for housing and general
employment land) or the requirements of national planning guidance. Early
delivery is essential to enable the council to demonstrate that sufficient land will
be available when needed to meet the Core Strategy targets. Without an up to
date plan, the ‘presumption in favour of sustainable development’ by the
Government means that any development or Neighbourhood Plan in conformity
with national policy will be acceptable, regardless of any previous positions of the
authority. The more the work progresses, the more material weight can be given
to it.

Conclusion

This report provided a summary of the responses received to the publication
consultation on the AVLAAP. The main issues raised in the representations to
the plan have been discussed in detail, with options for consideration in
determining how the council should respond.

Page 27



7.0
71

Recommendation
Development Plan Panel is invited to:

i) Note the summary representations to the draft Aire Valley Leeds Area
Action Plan consultation as set out in Schedules 1 and 2 in Appendix A.

i) Consider the issues set out in Section 3 of the report and provide
guidance on the initial officer responses to the representations.

Page 28



Appendix A — Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific Responses

Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AVO - Mixed Historic Unspecifi | Policy No Policy AVL7, Site AV9 site requirements add an | Unspecifie | n/a
Hunslet | use England, ed omission/S additional bullet-point along the following lines:- | d
Lane, allocatio | National ite “Consideration should be had to the setting of
Evans n Planning & requiremen the undesignated heritage assets to the north
Halsha Conservati ts - Not and south of this site which are shown on the
w on supportive Area Map."
Garage
AV - Mixed Pendrago | Support | Other - Yes n/a Yes n/a
Hunslet | use n PLC Supportive
Lane, allocatio
Evans n
Halsha
w
| GArage
R/9 - Mixed Historic Unspecifi | Policy No Policy AVL7, Site AV7 site requirements fifth Unspecifie | n/a
Hginslet | use England, ed omission/S bullet-point amend to read:- “There are a d
Lane, allocatio | National ite number of Listed Buildings adjacent to this site.
Evans n Planning & requiremen Any development should preserve the special
Halsha Conservati ts - Not architectural interest or setting of these
w on supportive buildings.
Garage
AV17 - | Mixed Historic Unspecifi | Policy No Policy AVL7, Site AV17 site requirements Unspecifie | n/a
Braime | use England, ed omission/S second bullet-point amend to read:- “The site d
Pressin | allocatio | National ite includes a Listed Building. Any development
gs, n Planning & requiremen should preserve the special architectural interest
Hunslet Conservati ts - Not or setting of this building".
Lane on supportive

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site

Allocati
on

Submitter

Agree

Issues

Soun

Respondent comments

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

AV18 -
Marsh
Lane

abed

~
”

Mixed
use
allocatio
n

Leeds
Civic Trust

Neutral

Site
boundary -
Not
supportive
Phasing -
Not
supportive

No

While four-tracking is mentioned with regard to
site HG2-120 (Vickers), this comment should be
applied to all the East of Leeds sites in the table.
We have no argument with the allocation of
these site for residential or mixed use as
appropriate but feel that their precise boundaries
and/or the phasing of their development should
be reviewed given on-going discussions with
regard to the enhancement of rail services to
and through Leeds. The plans should
acknowledge the potential for widening of the
rail corridor and for short/long term access to the
tracks to facilitate construction and
maintenance. Appropriate statements to this
effect within the SAP and AVLAAP would
ensure that the Plans would be made sound
with regard to this issue.

Unspecifie
d

n/a

0¢€

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV20 - | Housing | David Object Ecology/La | No The wording of the documentation should state | Don't n/a
Yorkshir | allocatio | Mackie ndscape/Tr that the site *may* become available subjectto | know
e n ees - Not rigorous consultation about the future of the
Ambula supportive service, and that consultation over alternative
nce Local uses has been proposed. Additionally, the
Station, services - wording should reflect the possibility that it may
Saxton Not be secured as a community asset, and hence
Lane supportive not suitable for older/assisted living. | was told
Highways that the process to ask for an area to be
and designated as a park/garden would be via this
transport - consultation. | would like to ask for this for part
Not of this land which has traditionally had some
supportive planting on it, to be allocated as a green space. |
Other - would like to ask for consideration for allotment
J Unspecifie space/garden/green space in the lot adjacent to
Q d the ambulance station, and for a consultation
w Greenspac about this, particularly as part of the local
- e/Green vision/neighbourhood plan. There should be a
infrastructu proper allocation of allotment space, especially
re - on land such as this which is unlikely to support
Unspecifie a large building.
d
AV20 - | Housing | David Object Local No There isn't a change of use to residential, and Don't n/a
Yorkshir | allocatio | Mackie services - the area is zoned as a public/community facility. | know
e n Unspecifie
Ambula d
nce
Station,
Saxton
Lane

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV21 - | Identifie | David Support | Other - Yes n/a Don't n/a
The d Mackie Unspecifie know
Parade | housing d
& The
Drive
AV28 - | Housing | Historic Unspecifi | Conservati | Yes n/a Unspecifie | n/a
Bow allocatio | England, ed on and d
Street n National heritage -
and Planning & Supportive
East Conservati
Street on
29 - | Housing | Historic Unspecifi | Conservati | Yes n/a Unspecifie | n/a
erby | allocatio | England, ed on and d
ad n National heritage -
#d Planning & Supportive
Bow Conservati
Street on
AV29 - | Housing | Historic Unspecifi | Policy No Policy AVL7, Site AV28 and AV29 site Unspecifie | n/a
Ellerby | allocatio | England, ed omission/S requirements fifth bulletpoint amend to read:- d
Road n National ite “Site AV29 is adjacent to the Grade | Listed St
and Planning & requiremen Saviour Church and other Listed Buildings. Any
Bow Conservati ts - Not development should preserve the special
Street on supportive architectural interest or setting of these

buildings.”

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV38 - | Housing | Historic Unspecifi | Policy No Policy AVL7, Site AV38 site requirements fourth | Unspecifie | n/a
Former | allocatio | England, ed omission/S bullet-point amend to read:- “The site is adjacent | d
Copperf | n National ite to two Listed Buildings. Any development should
ields Planning & requiremen preserve the special architectural interest or
College Conservati ts - Not setting of these buildings.”
site on supportive
AV40 - | Housing | Frank Support | Other - Yes n/a Yes n/a
Bridgew | allocatio | Daltrey Supportive
ater n
Road
North
AV40 - | Housing | Historic Unspecifi | Policy No Policy AVL7, Site AV40 site requirements eighth | Unspecifie | n/a
Bridgew | allocatio | England, ed omission/S bullet-point amend to read:- “The site is lies d
ater n National ite opposite the Listed Buildings at Hunslet
Rpad Planning & requiremen Mill/Victoria Mill. Any development should
Morth Conservati ts - Not preserve the special architectural interest or
w on supportive setting of these buildings.”
AV40 - | Housing | DB Support | Ownership/ | No Increase site delivery number from 425 to 600. Unspecifie | n/a
Bridgew | allocatio | Schenker Delivery - Remove requirement to provide buffer as thisis | d
ater n Not provided for within site 13 of the NRWLP.
Road supportive
North Policy
omission/S
ite
requiremen
ts - Not
supportive
AV43 - | Identifie | Chris Support | Local No Upgrade of broadband/fibre services to Yes n/a
Yarn d Renton services - residents.
Street housing Neutral

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site

Allocati
on

Submitter

Agree

Issues

Soun

Respondent comments

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

AV43 -
Yarn
Street

y¢ abed

|dentifie
d
housing

Park Chua

Support

Ecology/La
ndscape/Tr
ees -
Unspecifie
d
Conservati
on and
heritage -
Unspecifie
d
Greenbelt -
Unspecifie
d Local
services -
Unspecifie
d
Highways
and
transport -
Unspecifie
d Site
boundary -
Unspecifie
d Other -
Unspecifie
d

Yes

n/a

Don't
know

n/a

AV46 -
Tetleys
Motor
Service
s, 76

Housing
allocatio
n

Historic
England,
National
Planning &
Conservati

Unspecifi
ed

Policy
omission/S
ite
requiremen
ts - Not

No

Policy AVL7, Site AV46 site requirements fourth
bullet-point amend to read:- “The site is lies
opposite the Listed Buildings at Hunslet
Mill/Victoria Mill. Any development should
preserve the special architectural interest or

Unspecifie
d

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
Goodm on supportive setting of these buildings.”
an
Street,
Hunslet
AV63 - | Identifie | Muse Unspecifi | Employme | No The policy wording for the allocation (AV63) Unspecifie | n/a
Logic d Developm | ed nt/econom should be explicit and clearly reflect the current | d
Leeds general | ents Ltd y - Not Planning Approval which is in the process of
(Skelton | employ supportive being implemented. The current Primary Policy
Moor ment wording, which is a little at odds with the extant
Farm) outline planning approval on the Site, has the
potential to create a degree of market
uncertainty for both the landowner and a future
developer. The Policy wording should be
_ amended and made more explicit accordingly.
/%3/63 - | Identifie | Muse Unspecifi | Employme | No Despite the cross reference to AVL4 the Site is | Unspecifie | n/a
Logic d Developm | ed nt/econom not listed in the Table in Policy AVL4. We d
$eds general | ents Ltd y - Not assume the Policy relates to new allocations
(Skelton | employ supportive rather than the identified sites in Table 2 related
Moor ment to AVL2. It should be noted that the Site has
Farm) planning permission for all the uses set out in

AVLA4 plus B2 use. It is unclear why B2 is
specifically excluded from AVL4. We request
clarification of these points accordingly.

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV72 - | General | Towngate | Unspecifi | Policy No designated as safeguarded wharf by LNRWLP No n/a
North of | employ | Plc ed omission/S policy 13(2). The south west area of the site is
Haigh ment ite identified as site AV72 where emerging policy
Park allocatio requiremen AVL4 supports general employment
Road n ts - Not development (B1(b), B1(c), B2 and B8 uses).
supportive Support the proposed allocation, but consider

the allocation should cover the site as a whole,

ie. both the wharf policy area and remaining

land. This way, should wharf development not

come forward, the site can be delivered for

employment uses in line with the wider

development in Stourton.
AV74 - | General | canal & Support | Ecology/La | No We note that there is no explanation within the Yes n/a
Former | employ | river trust ndscape/Tr Plan for the reason to include a buffer and we
Ptaying | ment ees - Not consider it is not required as the proposed and
#Blds, allocatio supportive adjacent existing uses will not conflict in terms of
ﬂgelton n Other - land use and amenity considerations to the
Grange Unspecifie south-east of the site as the site is set within an
Road d existing industrial area. Furthermore, we note

that a ‘green corridor’ proposed along Skelton
Grange Road significantly overlaps site AV74.
Having discussed this matter with the City
Council, we understand that the green corridor
is not intended to overlap the site and for the
sake of accuracy, we recommend that the Plan
is amended so that the green corridor does not
overlap the site. These proposed amendments
would help to ensure that the Plan is sound by
meeting the effective test in accordance with
paragraph 182 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV76 - | General | Towngate | Support Policy No ref Former Vulcan Works - support the proposed | No n/a
Haigh employ | Plc omission/S allocation, but consider the allocation should
Park ment ite cover the site as a whole, ie. both the vacant
Road allocatio requiremen and developed areas of the site. This way,
n ts - Not should Towngate wish to progress a wholesale
supportive redevelopment of their land they could do so
with policy support from the AVLAAP.
AV78 - | Identifie | Towngate | Support | Policy No We support the allocation of the site for No n/a
d Plc omission/S development, but consider the allocation should
general ite include flexibility which allows a range of
employ requiremen employment generating uses, ie. both B class
ment ts - Not and non B-Class uses. The emerging policy
supportive wording should be developed which is
supportive of non B-Class uses. Such uses
S could include small retail and food units, a petrol
<Q filling station, trade counter and leisure options
w (eg. hotel and restaurant).
AV81 - | Identifie | Highways | Support | Highways | No The statement in Policy AVL4 should include an | Don't n/a
Leeds d office | England and indication of the floor space of general know
Valley employ transport - employment use that could be substituted for
Park ment Unspecifie office use.
d Other -
Unspecifie
d
AV82 - | Identifie | West Support | Highways | Unsp | Have a couple of minor comments regarding Unspecifie | n/a
Stourto | d Yorkshire and ecifie | including mention of NGT within for example the | d
n Park | transport | Combined transport- | d opening paragraph 1.1.2.
& Ride | infrastru | Authority Not
site cture supportive

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV82 - | Identifie | Ineke Neutral Highways | No More information on decisions made available Don't n/a
Stourto | d Jackson and for consultations or decisions reviewed in the know
n Park | transport transport - light of answers to the questions in the
& Ride | infrastru Not numbered comments in email.
site cture supportive
AV83 - | General | Towngate | Support | Site No Support the proposed allocation, but consider No n/a
Off employ | Plc boundary - the allocation should cover the site as a whole,
Skelton | ment Not ie. both the wharf policy area and remaining
Grange | allocatio supportive land. This way, should wharf development not
Road, n come forward, the site can be delivered for
East employment uses in line with the wider
site. development in Stourton. This way, should
wharf development not come forward, the site
can be delivered for employment uses in line
T with the wider development in Stourton. The
& suggested allocation will ensure the site has a
g flexible allocation which maximises the
@ prospects of redevelopment, as supported by
the Framework and adopted Leeds Core
Strategy. Without the future flexibility, should the
wharf options fail to progress the site would, in
essence, be sterilised for future development.
This clearly goes against the prevailing local
policy position and that contained in the adopted
Leeds Core Strategy.
AV83 - | General | canal & Support | Ecology/La | No As such, we recommend that the requirement Yes n/a
Off employ | river trust ndscape/Tr for the buffers is removed from the ‘site
Skelton | ment ees - requirements’ for site AV83, in order that the
Grange | allocatio Unspecifie AVLAAP is consistent with the NRWLP. This will
Road, n d Other - help to ensure consistency between the
East Unspecifie AVLAAP and NRWLP and thereby assist with

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments

site. d meeting the ‘soundness’ test of effectiveness.

AV94 - | South Saxton Hill | Neutral Local Unsp | Requesting that the Tetley site, the building, and | Unspecifie | n/a

South Bank Communit services - | ecifie | city park/South Bank is designated as suitable d

Bank PSA y Group Not d for cultural venue - That another arts space is

Plannin (non- supportive made available if the Tetley is no longer an arts

g constituted space. - That it is recognised as an important

Statem ) community facility. - That formal consultation

ent happens before any change to the current use

Area of the site.

AY94 - | South National Object Site No Extension of Draft Allocation AV94 to include the | No n/a

$uth Bank Grid boundary - client’s landholdings (site 1267) to allow for the

Bank PSA Not flexible, mixed use development of the site.

Plannin supportive

g

Statem

ent

Area

AV94 - | South Vastint Support | Other - Not | No Policy AVL3 refers to the South Bank as having | Unspecifie | n/a

South Bank Leeds supportive an estimated capacity for office uses equatingto | d

Bank PSA B.V. 73,500 sgm, with Policy AVL7 identifying an

Plannin estimated dwelling capacity of 825 units. Neither

g policy directly imposes a limit on development,

Statem but nor do they explicitly confirm that the figures

ent are elastic and/or could be treated as minimum

Area requirements, where appropriate. Reference to

specific figures without relevant clarification

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site

Allocati
on

Submitter

Agree

Issues

Soun

Respondent comments

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

ot abed

could be read as some form of restriction,
particularly where there does not appear to be
any clear and transparent approach to
calculating capacity. Initial work undertaken by
Vastint indicates that the capacity of the
Brewery site alone could significantly exceed
(particularly for housing) that quoted in the draft
AVLAAP. When considering the scale of the site
this is not surprising. The accessibility
credentials of the site by noncar modes — to be
further enhanced by NGT and new pedestrian
routes — support a high density scheme. For
example, adopting Transport for London’s PTAL
(Public Transport Accessibility Level) criteria, or
Greater Manchester’s Accessibility Level
(GMAL) approach, the site has excellent access
by public transport which would, in turn, support
a high density of development. Notwithstanding
the land-take requirements of the City Park,
adopting a development density anywhere near
that of modern schemes in the surrounding area
(e.g. Brewery Wharf, New Dock, Velocity, etc)
would generate a quantum of floorspace/unit
count far in excess of that suggested within the
draft policies. Therefore, to be consistent with
the Core Strategy (and the Framework) spatial
approach to directing new development to the
City Centre, and subject to normal development
control considerations, clarification should be
added to each Policy (AV3 and AV7) confirming
that the figures are quoted for indicative

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
purposes , and are to be considered as the
minimum quantum of development that could be
accommodated in the South Bank area. This is
a positive and justified approach to these
policies.
AV94 - | South Vastint Neutral Policy Unsp | The status of the bold text in the box is not clear. | Unspecifie | n/a
South Bank Leeds omission/S | ecifie | It appears to summarise other policies in the d
Bank PSA B.V. ite d AVLAAP relevant to the site/area, but also adds
Plannin requiremen more detail. In this respect it may be clearer if it
g ts - Neutral was a policy in its own right. There is a
Statem Factual presumed typographical error in the text where it
ent correction refers to Policy SB1 rather than SB4.
Area required -
Neutral
94 - | South Historic Unspecifi | Policy No SBPSA, Policy AVL7, Site AV94 site Unspecifie | n/a
uth Bank England, ed omission/S requirements add the following to the end of the | d
Bank PSA National ite sixth bullet-point :- “Where possible,
Plannin Planning & requiremen opportunities should be taken to improve the
g Conservati ts - Not setting of these buildings.”
Statem on supportive site requirements fifth bullet-point amend to
ent read:- “There are a number of Listed Buildings
Area both within the site and on its periphery. Any
development should preserve the special
architectural interest or setting of these
buildings. Proposals will also be expected to
provide a sustainable future for those Listed
Buildings which are currently vacant or at risk.
Where possible, opportunities should be taken
to improve the setting of these buildings.”
AV94 - | South Historic Unspecifi | Conservati | Yes n/a Unspecifie | n/a
South Bank England, ed on and d

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent

on d Legal comments
Bank PSA National heritage -
Plannin Planning & Supportive
g Conservati
Statem on
ent
Area
AV94 - | South Leeds Neutral Schools - Unsp | We believe there should be a commitment to a Unspecifie | n/a
South Bank Civic Trust Not ecifie | primary school as early as possible to allow d
Bank PSA supportive |d existing residents to stay in the area if they wish
Plannin as they start families. The critical mass may
g never be achieved if there is no primary school
Statem to attract younger families. AV94 should
ent therefore include provision for a primary school.
Area
AY94 - | South David Object Ecology/La | No The site is allocated as zonable for cultural Don't n/a
Euth Bank Mackie ndscape/Tr uses. The continuing arts space is secured. know
Ifgnk PSA ees - There are guarantees about having successful
Pfannin Unspecifie mixed communities in this space, and having
g d Local people of different incomes spread fairly evenly
Statem services - throughout the buildings. There are guarantees
ent Unspecifie in relation to the park-like feel of this area.
Area d
AV98 - | Mixed Historic Unspecifi | Policy No Policy AVL7, Site AV98 site requirements Unspecifie | n/a
Atkinso | use England, ed omission/S second bullet-point amend to read:- “The siteis | d
n Street | allocatio | National ite adjacent to the Listed Buildings at Hunslet

n Planning & requiremen Mill/Victoria Mill. Any development should

Conservati ts - Not preserve the special architectural interest or
on supportive setting of these buildings.”

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV111 - | Housing | Extra MSA | Object Ownership/ | No In order to ensure that the draft AVLAAP is No n/a
Skelton | allocatio | Group Delivery - sound, the 11.41 hectares of land within Extra
Gate n Not MSA Group’s contractual control and identified
supportive on the enclosed plan (2015/Skelton 001), needs
Noise/Air to be removed from draft residential Allocation
quality - AV111 as identified on draft Proposals Maps 3,
Not 12, 13 and 14. The site area and estimated
supportive number of dwellings (capacity) set out in draft
Ground policy AVL7 also need to be adjusted
conditions accordingly to reflect the fact that this part of the
- Not site has to be omitted from the allocation. These
supportive figures also need to be amended throughout the
Site AVLAAP Publication Draft Document in its
boundary - entirety. The first point to make is that since the
Ay Not site is not available for housing development no
Q supportive reliance should be made that the site could
IS Other - Not accommodate any residential development.
w supportive Even if it was available to accommodate

housing there are significant site constraints that
would constrain its development potential.
These constraints include buffer zones to
address noise, air quality and electricity pylons
and no build zones resulting from the site’s
historic use, along with SUDS and greenspace
requirements and existing landscape and water
features. Once these significant site constraints
have been taken into account a net developable
area of 4.75 hectares (11.74 acres) would
remain and hence the potential of the site for
residential development would be extremely
restricted. If we assume a market facing

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site

Allocati
on

Submitter

Agree

Issues

Soun

Respondent comments

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

vt abed

residential coverage of 15,000 sq. ft. / acre upon
the net developable area (11.74 acres) that
would deliver a total 176,058 sq. ft. of residential
floorspace. Should we assume a typical
residential development comprising dwellings
ranging between 750 sq. ft. and 1,300 sq. ft.
with an average dwelling size of 1,050 sq. ft.
that would realise development at an average
density of 35 dwellings / hectare or 14.3
dwellings / acre. Based on the aforementioned
assumptions, no more than 168 dwellings could
be delivered on the site even if it were available
for housing development. Consequently,
removal of this land from the residential
allocation AV111 would have a negligible impact
upon the City Council’s ability to deliver the
homes required to meet its overall housing
requirement.

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent

on d Legal comments
AV111 - | Housing | Highways | Object Highways | No The Plan needs to recognise that development | Don't n/a
Skelton | allocatio | England and of the Skelton Gate site and implementation of know
Gate n transport - the development proposals in the remainder of
Unspecifie Aire Valley Leeds and in other parts of the city
d will require major investment in highway

infrastructure. The following schemes on the
Strategic Road Network need to be referred to in
the section of the Plan relating to Skelton Gate: «
The RIS M1 junction 45 improvement scheme. «
The potential need for additional mainline
capacity in each direction on the M1 between
junctions 45 and 46 identified by the initial
outputs from the West Yorkshire Infrastructure
Study. Where committed schemes do not
provide sufficient capacity or where Highways
England does not have committed investment,
sites may need to deliver or contribute to
schemes identified in the Infrastructure Delivery
Plan. This may well apply to Site AV111. The
proposed housing and office development
should be phased to begin after completion of
the RIS M1 junction 45 improvement and should
take account of the timing any additional
capacity enhancements on the M1 in the vicinity
of junction 45. Knowsthorpe Lane should be
confirmed as a secondary route for general
traffic into Skelton Gate from the west. It should
connect with the access road network within the
site to avoid imposing any extra traffic circulating
around the gyratory at M1 junction 45. The
proposed eastern secondary access to/from

G obed

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site

Allocati
on

Submitter

Agree

Issues

Soun

Respondent comments

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

ot abed

Bullerthorpe Lane should not be open to general
traffic as it risks creating a rat run through
Skelton gate and M1 junction 45. However, it
does have potential for use as a public transport
route to accommodate a bus service from the
Colton area through the Aire Valley Leeds to the
city centre. It could also have a role in
addressing the missing public transport link
between the central; area of Aire Valley Leeds
and the Five Towns area of Wakefield District.

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site

Allocati
on

Submitter

Agree

Issues

Soun

Respondent comments

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

AV111 -
Skelton
Gate

/v obed

Housing
allocatio
n

Joel
Kaufman

Object

Greenbelt -
Not
supportive

No

Remove from housing allocation.

No

inadequate legal
compliance of the
Public
Consultation to be
raised for
consideration and
response: 1. There
must be a simple
and transparent
method for
identifying green
belt sites up for
development
within the SAP;
however the
Council
documents do not
contain any clear
lists that provide
information of
green belt. In
place, the details
of green belt sites
are hidden
amongst the
thousands of other
types of sites
identified for
analysis. 2. There
should be a simple
method for making

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site

Allocati
on

Submitter

Agree

Issues

Soun

Respondent comments

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

81 abed

objection of
multiple sites,
such as outlined
above — within the
councils’ website
(their primary
method of
requesting
feedback). In
place, it requires
responders to
place their
comments on an
individual basis,
site by site — which
is unfairly
obstructive and
divisive.

AV111 -
Skelton
Gate

Housing
allocatio
n

Christophe
r Coyle

Object

Other - Not
supportive

No

The houses being built here are being credited
to Leeds East HMCA. The credit should have
been allocated to Outer South East HMCA. This
development should be put on hold until the
decision making process has been scrutinised
and this issue has been resolved.

Unspecifie
d

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV111 - | Housing | Templegat | Support | Other - Not | No [Capacity]: Policy AVL7 and Table 6(5) suggest | Unspecifie | n/a
Skelton | allocatio | e supportive 2,619 units can be delivered on the Skelton d
Gate n Developm Policy Gate site. Clearly we support the inclusion but
ents Ltd omission/S our master planning and extensive technical
ite work suggests that figure is over stated and that
requiremen 2,000 would be more realistic. We therefore
ts - Not object to that figure being included in the AAP
supportive going forward. [Site requirements - local centre]:
Policy The wording needs to have a degree of
omission/S flexibility. We cannot guarantee financial &
ite professional services or cafes/restaurants at this
requiremen stage. Furthermore there has been no firm
ts - Not feedback from the relevant health authorities,
supportive local GP’s or dental surgeries so it is not prudent
Ay Policy or possible to say it will include health services.
Q omission/S It would be more sensible to say may or could
A ite include. Until such time as this amendment is
© requiremen made we maintain an objection. [Site
ts - Not requirements - second primary access]: should
supportive be less definitive and focus more on ‘future

options for alternative access points, particularly
for emergency vehicles and public transport’.
We do not currently believe we need to deliver a
secondary access and the matter of access will
be resolved in detail during the application
process. Hence, such an assertion is premature.
[Site requirements - landfill site]: Distance has
not been discussed or agreed and should be set
following due consideration of a planning
application accompanied by EIA and other
assessments.

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments

AV111 - | Housing | Historic Unspecifi | Policy No Policy AVL7, Site AV111 site requirements add | Unspecifie | n/a
Skelton | allocatio | England, ed omission/S the following additional bullet-point:- “The d
Gate n National ite development will be required to safeguard key

Planning & requiremen views from the Historic Park and Garden at

Conservati ts - Not Temple Newsam”

on supportive
AV111 - | Housing | Commerci | Object Ownership/ | Unsp | The long leasehold interest in that part of Unspecifie | n/a
Skelton | allocatio | al Delivery - | ecifie | Skelton Gate site on which Extra have submitted | d
Gate n Developm Not d comment is curretnly vested in CDP and subject

ent supportive to a long-term contractual control by Extra as

Projects the future new owner of the site. The term of

Limited that ground lease is 125 years from 23rd Jan

2004. Refers to separate Extra MSA
submission. The site is not available or

pY) deliverable for residential development.
@
(9]
3

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments
AV100 - | Not Towngate | Unspecifi | Policy No Notwithstanding our above representations to No n/a
Haigh allocate | Plc ed omission/S the AVLAAP employment policies and
Park d for ite designations, there is potential for the entire
Road, housing requiremen holdings (and adjacent land) to come forward for
Stourto ts - Not housing development (as previously considered
n supportive in the AVLAAP 2009 Draft). The site is suitable
for housing given it is: » Located within the
Leeds urban area; ¢ In a location which could
deliver significant improvements to pedestrian
access to the Aire & Calder Navigation,
particularly along the line of the river; ¢ In single
ownership and could be available for
development in the plan period;  Easily
accessible via road transport. « Within walking
i distance of local bus services, and a ten minute
Q drive from the proposed Park and Ride site; *
o Well located for pedestrian and cycle access
- points; « Not subject to ecological constraints; °
In a location where suitable access can be
achieved; ¢ Likely to benefit from proposed
infrastructure improvements in the area (such as
the Pontefract Road / A63 link and Leeds Flood
Alleviation Scheme) and * Not subject to other
further significant constraints (i.e. air quality,
noise). Allocate the site for housing.
AV114 - | Not Commerci | Unspecifi | Policy Unsp | Allocate the site as a MSA. Refer to Extra MSA | Unspecifie | n/a
Skelton | allocate | al ed omission/S | ecifie | submission. d
MSA d for Developm ite d
other ent requiremen
uses Projects ts - Not
Limited supportive

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent

on d Legal comments
AV114 - | Not Extra MSA | Unspecifi | Policy No Extra MSA Group therefore proposes that this No n/a
Skelton | allocate | Group ed omission/S site is allocated to provide a new Motorway
MSA d for ite Service Area (MSA) for the benefit of the Leeds
other requiremen City Region and all users of this important part
uses ts - Not of the National Strategic Road Network, where
supportive there is a clear identified road safety related

'need' for a new MSA facility in accordance with
Department for Transport Circular 02/13 and
National Planning Policy. The Strategic Road
Network plays a key role in the movement of
goods and people around the county and is
critical to the performance of the economy.
Driver fatigue is a recognised cause of road
accidents and the resulting impact and costs of
delay on the Road Network can be significant
and widespread. Motorway Service Areas
provide a key function in ensuring the safety and
welfare of drivers and their passengers.
Government policy set out in Department for
Transport Circular 02/2013 ‘The Strategic Road
Network and the Delivery of Sustainable
Development’ advises that motorists should stop
and take a break of at least 15 minutes every
two hours. Commercial and public service
drivers are also required to take statutory breaks
and are subject to working time limits. Motorway
Service Areas create opportunities and facilities
for motorists and commercial drivers to take
such breaks, refresh and relax. Highways
England’s objective and clear recommendation
(as set out in Circular 02/2013) is that MSAs

ZS abed

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati

on

Submitter

Agree

Issues

Soun

Respondent comments

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

€G abed

should be located at a maximum of 30 minutes
travelling time. This can typically be a maximum
distance of 28 miles but on similarly busy and
congested sections of the Motorway Network, is
an average of 15 to 20 miles. The M1, M62 and
A1M Motorways are amongst the busiest and
most important in the UK. The distances
between existing MSA facilities in this area
significantly exceed the maximum 30 minute
travelling time separation requirement and the
needs of motorists, commercial drivers and their
passengers are not been adequately met within
the Leeds City Region. There is therefore a
‘clear need’ for a new MSA at J45 of the M1
Motorway (M1 J45) to fill this gap in provision, at
this key strategic location. Extra MSA Group’s
11.41 ha site is available and suitable to
accommodate this use and development would
be fully achievable within the early part of the
plan period. Such a scheme would provide a
bespoke and high profile, gateway development
at the entrance to both the Aire Valley and
Skelton Gate and would fully integrate with the
remainder of the draft Skelton Gate allocation. In
order to reflect these changes, the AVLAAP
Publication Draft Document will need to be
amended throughout to remove reference to the
residential allocation of this 11.41 hectare site
and to incorporate an allocation to provide a
Motorway Service Area instead. An associated
MSA policy may also be appropriate. In addition,

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Site Allocati | Submitter | Agree Issues Soun | Respondent comments Legal Respondent
on d Legal comments

the draft text at paragraph 4.6.37 which states
that ‘Proposals which would lead to the creation
of a destination serving a wide catchment such
as a retail/leisure park, motorway service area
or other format which provides large areas of car
parking and attracts significant trips to the site
from the motorway network would not be
consistent with this approach’ should also be
omitted.

G abed

Appendix A - Schedule 1 Summary of Site Specific changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Appendix A — Schedule 2 Summary of General Comments

Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
There are no
outstanding
strategic issues
that fall within our
remit and area of
interest raised by
the Leeds
publication Site
Allocations Plan
& Aire Valley
Leeds Area
Action Plan
§ documents which
® necessitate
L attention under
Environmen | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe | the duty to co-
t Agency ed ed n/a cified | operate.
National Grid does not own the land
over which the overhead lines cross,
and it obtains the rights from
individual landowners to place our
equipment on their land. Potential
developers of the sites should be
aware that it is National Grid policy to
retain our existing overhead lines in-
situ. Because of the scale, bulk and
cost of the transmission equipment
National Unspecifi | Unspecifi | required to operate at 400kV National | Unspe
Grid ed ed Grid only supports proposals for the cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

9g abed

relocation of existing high voltage
overhead lines where such proposals
directly facilitate a major development
or infrastructure project of national
importance which has been identified
as such by central government.
Therefore we advise developers and
planning authorities to take into
account the location and nature of
existing electricity transmission
equipment when planning
developments.

National Grid prefers that buildings
are not built directly beneath its
overhead lines. This is for two
reasons, the amenity of potential
occupiers of properties in the vicinity
of lines and because National Grid
needs quick and easy access to carry
out maintenance of its equipment to
ensure that it can be returned to
service and be available as part of the
national transmission system. Such
access can be difficult to obtain
without inconveniencing and
disturbing occupiers and residents,
particularly where properties are in
close proximity to overhead lines.
The following site are affected by this
approach AV64, AV67, AV68, AV111.

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
National Grid only supports proposals
for the relocation of existing high
voltage overhead lines where such
proposals directly facilitate a major
development or infrastructure project
of national importance which has
been identified as such by central
government.
Roger Unspecifi Don't
Shaw ed Yes n/a know | n/a
Brian Unspecifi | Unspecifi
Holmes ed ed n/a Yes n/a
AVLAAP
Flood Risk
SBquential
&ad
E\xjceptions
Test
Backgroun Environmen | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
d Paper t Agency ed ed n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

8¢G abed

AVLAAP
Flood Risk
Sequential
and
Exceptions
Test
Backgroun
d Paper

Environmen
t Agency

Unspecifi
ed

Unspecifi
ed

Some of the exceptions test tables
(such as AV15 and AV16) include the
following:

‘Only ‘Highly Vulnerable’ uses within
FZ2 are required to pass the
Exception Test and ‘More Vulnerable’
uses, such as dwelling houses are
‘Appropriate’ for siting within this
zone, subject to a Flood Risk
Assessment, which should include the
following measures:’. We are
confused with the inclusion of this
bullet point.

We note that for some of the central
HMCA's the allocations for housing
has exceeded the Core Strategy
targets. A vast number of sites are
located in flood zone 3, therefore we
would need some more clarity on the
LPAs views on how this has impacted
the Sequential Test approach and if
phasing will be introduced to deliver
lower flood risk sites first, i.e. will flood
zone 1 sites take precedent over flood
zone 3aii sites?

Unspe
cified

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
1. All playing fields, (public, school, Site allocations
community and private), to be not consistent
designated as a form of green space with the core
on the plans. strategy. Site

allocations not
2. All green areas that have never consistent with
been built on in Leeds, larger than 0.2 sustainable
ha, and not otherwise referenced in development.
these plans, are designated as some WWEF indicates
form of green space on the maps. British
(This includes gardens that were part environmental
of developers' plans, such as Saxton's footprint per
gardens. Small gardens in areas of capita is roughly
high density housing are particularly
S important, so some beautiful gardens three times the
Q smaller than 0.2ha should be amount that the
o designated as a form of green space. planet can
© For every new development, on sustain. Forests
completion, any agreed green/garden and animal
area should be highlighted as such on species globally
Council mapping going forward). in great decline.
No adequate
3. All areas where it's been accepted budgets for

AVLAAP that they were covenanted never to be dealing with

Greenspac built on, or to be used for public climate change.

e (Green New, East benefit, they should be allocated as a Site allocations

space and South form of green space/community not consistent

Assessmen Leeds with compliance

t) Community facility on the maps. with UK and

Backgroun Body (non- | Unspecifi European air

d Paper constituted) | ed No 4. The Council commits to a full No quality legislation

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
consultation with a range of local and other
people and community leadership environmental
teams before any playing fields or legislation. Lack
parks are redesignated for other uses. of consultation
with community
5. The Council has a full consultation and the public
with a range of local people before about the above
any open green spaces (including its matters -
parks and gardens or other green Burmantofts and
sites it owns) are redesignated for Richmond Hill
other Community
Leadership Team
uses. did not find out
about this whole
2y 6. That the Council views the green planning process
& sites that it owns as potentially of including the core
g value to the community, and any sites strategy until
o three weeks

on a list for sale by the Council should
be designated as potentially a
community asset, and offered to the
local community first. This should be
reflected in the spacial allocation
plans.

7. 1t may be concerning relating to the
planning process if it's ambigous
whether there is an overallocation of
green space in a certain geographic
area, as developers may use this as

grounds against Council decisions.

before the
deadline. I've
been involved for
really quite some
time. There's
been really
limited
consultation with
community
leaders about
these matters,
and it has felt
very rushed. The

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
My view is that the word process has
"overallocation" should not be used, it meant that some
should be made clear that green spaces and
overallocation is a value judgement, quality spaces
as many stakeholders would agree that the Council is
that a good supply of green spaces aware of/should
and quality green spaces are key to be aware of, will
ensuring that Leeds is a good city to have slipped
live in or the best city to live in. through the net,
Additionally Leeds as a garden city and the same
may be key to it having the chance to with community
be the best city to live in in the UK. facilities/facilities
Finally, if the word overallocation has that are public
to be used, it should be specified at a owned and may

A" very local level, in consultation with be of value as

Y ; )

Q the Councillors for each area. A community

o starting point for the information to facilities.

make some of these things happen
might be the Parks and Gardens
group, and also satellite imagery of
Leeds.

8. Need to look at a combined green
space/and effective or potenital
community facility designation. You
also need to have a low-level
designation for green space that is not

beautiful, and for community facilities,
a designation for sites where there
has been a successful application for

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

29 abed

a community facility, and a low-level
designation where the site is likely to
be of benefit to all of the community,
or has the potential for this (e.g.
because the building is publicly
owned, and may be being disposed
of). If any of the above did not happen
in relation to this process, then this
body would have an objection.

The plans allocate all publicly owned
green space, and all playing fields
regardless of ownership, as such, and
that the Council commits to consulting
fully with local people and with
community leadership teams and
community leaders before any change
of use in the future, including this to
be stated in the plans. Note that my
definition of "green space" may have
a lower bar than an official definition in
relation to the size of the area, and
the criteria for what is a green space,
which for me would be a natural green
or brown coloured area that has never
been built on, or has been returned to
garden/natural form. Some hard
landscaping such as tennis courts
could be included - their colour is not
relevant.

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Where committed schemes will not

AVLAAP provide sufficient capacity or where

Infrastructu Highways England does not have

re Delivery committed investment, sites may need

Plan to deliver or contribute to schemes

Backgroun Highways Unspecifi | Unspecifi | identified in the Infrastructure Delivery | Unspe

d Paper England ed ed Plan. cified | n/a
The schedule in the IDP needs to be

AVLAAP amended to take account of the

Infrastructu current schemes identified in the

re Delivery government's Road Investment

Plan Strategy and the need for additional

Backgroun Highways Unspecifi capacity identified by recent modelling | Don't

d Paper England ed No undertaken by Highways England. know | n/a

AYLAAP

FZan

ocument - Selby

Pblication District Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe

Draft Council ed ed n/a cified | n/a

AVLAAP

Plan

Document -

Publication Leeds Civic | Unspecifi Unspe

Draft Trust ed Yes n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

The proposed change constitutes a
minor extension to the Aire Valley
Leeds area to incorporate adjacent
land required to connect the rail spur
with the main line. It is proposed to
include the land located south of the
existing boundary and north of the
existing railway, predominantly east of
the M1 motorway and extending
approximately to the western
boundary of the adjacent Rothwell
Country Park.

This tract of land would enable a
siding to be provided adjacent to the

T
& main line, thereby allowing freight
g trains serving Aire Valley Leeds (i.e.
B site AV68) to access/egress the main
line in both east and west bound
AVLAAP directions of travel. Inclusion of this
Plan land within the AAP area would serve
Document - to clearly demonstrate the nature of
Publication Harworth Unspecifi the interface between the rail spur and
Draft Map 2 Estates ed No the main line which is required. Yes n/a
AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication Stuart Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft Gilchrist ed ed n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

G9 abed

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

Environmen
t Agency

Unspecifi
ed

Unspecifi
ed

Some of the exceptions test tables
(such as AV15 and AV16) include the
following:

‘Only ‘Highly Vulnerable’ uses within
FZ2 are required to pass the
Exception Test and ‘More Vulnerable’
uses, such as dwelling houses are
‘Appropriate’ for siting within this
zone, subject to a Flood Risk
Assessment, which should include the
following measures:’. We are
confused with the inclusion of this
bullet point.

We note that for some of the central
HMCA's the allocations for housing
has exceeded the Core Strategy
targets. A vast number of sites are
located in flood zone 3, therefore we
would need some more clarity on the
LPAs views on how this has impacted
the Sequential Test approach and if
phasing will be introduced to deliver
lower flood risk sites first, i.e. will flood
zone 1 sites take precedent over flood
zone 3aii sites?

Unspe
cified

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

99 abed

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

New, East
and South
Leeds
Community
Body (non-
constituted)

Unspecifi
ed

Unspecifi
ed

All public buildings providing a
service,

All buildings formally recognised as
community facilities,

All sites that the Council may wish to
dispose of, which the community
could apply to acquire as community
facilities

All parks and gardens, playing fields,
beautiful green spaces, green spaces

Any other facilities whose owners
wish to be acknowledged as
community facilities operating for the
benefit of the community.

Be designated on the spacial
allocations and its mapping as a
community facility, or a currently
public site for which the community
may apply for it to be a community
facility, and the result is hence
currently unknown and the Council
would consult fully with local residents
and community organisations before a
change of use of these sites, or before
selling these sites.

Unspe
cified

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

/9 abed

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

Leeds Civic
Trust

Unspecifi
ed

Unspecifi
ed

n/a

No

The Trust feels
that the SAP and
AVLAAP are not
legally compliant
in that the
consultation
processes carried
out have been
unsatisfactory
and do not
comply with the
published
Statement of
Community
Involvement
(SCI):

- the SCI states
that there is low
access to
electronic
resources in
Leeds and yet
this is almost
exclusively the
means by which
comments were
sought/submitted

- given its
importance to the

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

g9 abed

city, 'marketing' of
the SAP has
been poor, with
independent
resident groups
publicising events
and delivering
advice to
individuals

- the SCI has not
been updated
since 2007 and
there has been
no annual review
of its
effectiveness (as
stated in the SCI
would be the
case)

- the SCl refers to
methods of
consultation
which are no
longer in use eg
the About Leeds
civic newspaper
which was
delivered to all
homes in the city.

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

69 abed

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

Leeds Local
Access
Forum

Unspecifi
ed

Unspecifi
ed

In addition to the definitive PROW
network, there are many non-definitive
routes over which public rights may
exist. These non-definitive routes are
marked in green on the LCC on-line
definitive map with definitive routes
shown in black. (
https://cms.esriuk.com/leedscc/Sites/L
CCPROWI/# )

We recommend that any non-
definitive routes on allocated sites be
identified in the site assessment in a
similar manner to the definitive
PROW.

We also recommend the inclusion of
appropriate text that asks developers
of allocated sites to consult the
Definitive Map and have regard to
both definitive and non-definitive
routes, and furthermore have regard
to the Rights of Way Improvement
Plan by also identifying any
aspirational routes.

Unspe
cified

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
With regard to the
duty to cooperate
the Council can
confirm that it
considers the
plan to have been
positively
prepared giving
due regard to
strategic cross
boundary issues
and that no
strategic issues
have been

T identified.

A/LAAP Wakefield

Plan Wakefield Council supports

Bdcument - Metropolita the plan

Publication n District Unspecifi proceeding to

Draft Council ed Yes n/a Yes examination.

AVLAAP The site allocation methodology and

Plan assessment process needs to be

Document - revised and undertaken again taking

Publication The Coal Unspecifi into account unstable land as a

Draft Authority ed No relevant consideration. Yes n/a

AVLAAP

Plan

Document - William

Publication Birch & Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe

Draft Sons Ltd ed ed n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
The AAP should contain a policy
within the Resilient and Safe
Development section that sets out a
policy framework for addressing
unstable land. The policy could read
as follows:
“Proposals for development of land
which may be unstable must
incorporate appropriate investigation
into the quality of the land. Where
there is evidence of instability,
remedial measures must be identified
to ensure that the development will
LAAP not pose a risk to human health,
an public safety and the environment.
Decument - Investigation of land conditions must
Publication The Coal Unspecifi be carried out in accordance with the
Draft Authority ed No principles of best practice.” Yes n/a
AVLAAP
Plan
Document - Office of
Publication Rail and Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft Road ed ed n/a cified | n/a
Historic
AVLAAP England, Insert an additional Policy which sets
Plan National out the considerations that need to be
Document - Planning & taken into account in determining
Publication Conservatio | Unspecifi development proposals in their vicinity | Unspe
Draft n ed No of the identified Landmark Buildings. cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
AVLAAP

Plan

Document -

Publication Helen Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft Roberts ed ed n/a cified | n/a
AVLAAP

Plan

Document - Harrogate

Publication Borough Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft Council ed ed n/a cified | n/a
AVLAAP

Rfan

Bbcument - Templegate

blication Para Developme | Unspecifi Unspe
raft 1.34 nts Ltd ed No n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

At paragraph 2.1, under the heading
‘Urban Eco-Settlement Vision’, there
is reference to creating a ‘low carbon
environment’. Whilst we understand
the aspiration, it is important that this
is balanced with other considerations
and the context of the various sub-
areas / sites. Our focus is upon
delivering jobs at Temple Green and
homes with appropriate amenities /
services around the lake and Beck at
Skelton Gate. Whilst the design of
each set of proposals (or phase) will
be carefully considered in line with

Ay prevailing regulations and
Q landscaping, open space and SUDS
~ incorporated, there is a need to
w balance such aspirations for ‘low
carbon’ with viability and deliverability.
Our assumption is that energy and
waste facilities will be or have been
provided elsewhere in the AAP
AVLAAP Para 2.1 boundary, as evidenced by the
Plan - Urban ongoing EfW and recent wind turbine
Document - Eco Templegate projects. We therefore reserve the
Publication Settleme Developme | Unspecifi right to engage in further discussions | Unspe
Draft nt Vision nts Ltd ed No on this topic, including at the EiP. cified | n/a
AVLAAP Para 2.1, Historic
Plan AVL - England,
Document - Urban National Unspecifi Unspe
Publication Eco Planning & | ed Yes n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Draft Settleme Conservatio
nt Vision n
Paragraph 2.2, Principle 6 amend to
Historic read:-
AVLAAP England,
Plan National “To preserve, enhance and ensure a
Document - Para 2.2, Planning & sustainable future for its heritage
Publication Principle Conservatio | Unspecifi assets and enhance its natural assets | Unspe
Draft 6 n ed No linked to a wider network ... etc” cified | n/a
AVLAAP
n
Bpcument -
Rublication Para Highways Unspecifi
raft 3.2.12 England ed Yes n/a Yes n/a
Consider it necessary to examine the
deliverability of the AAP allocations
given the significant amount of land
allocated for employment use (232
ha), equating to 47% of the land
supply identified. Land which is
already or has previously been in use
for industrial uses should be assessed
AVLAAP to ensure all potential sites across the
Plan district are being reviewed. Currently,
Document - Para it is
Publication 3.2.18, Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft Table 3 Burberry ed ed anticipated that employment uses will | cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
be accommodated predominately
within the Aire Valley which should be
widened by identifying the potential for
employment in city centre sites as part
of mixed-use allocations.
These issues would have to be fully Allocations do not
considered and summarised in the reflect the core
plans. It will be clear what will happen strategy. Not all
to outcomes in relation to decent, relevant sites for
affordable housing for younger this strategy have
people, people in the social group been identified
C2DE, homeless people, migrants, and allocated.
those living in new HMOs and shared Allocations are
o) housing. There should be a not consistent
8 discernable impact on spacial with sustainable
‘\Dl allocations, particularly residential development
a allocations. There are a range of zone Allocations are
types here that | can't see in the not consistent
plans, including live and work spaces, with Social Value
self-build zones with Act
small packages of land, and movable and Human
accommodation. There should be a Rights Act The
stated general caveat from the process did not
Council that residential development give
New, East will be permitted subject to consideration to
AVLAAP and South appropriate
Plan Leeds the Social Value
Document - Community community facilities, green space and Act and Human
Publication Para Body (non- | Unspecifi infrastructure, and subject to Rights Act in a
Draft 3.3.20 constituted) | ed No affordability, mixed communities, high | No way that has

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

9/ abed

quality housing and liveable high
density housing in built-up areas,
being allocated at a spacial level
lower than is zoned here, including in
some areas primarily designated for
other purposes. And subject to
neighbourhood plans and
masterplanning/local design visions.
This will give the planning committees
some ammunition in relation to
appeals which it looks externally as if
they sorely need. Requirements in
terms of active frontage in high
density residential areas need to be
understood. Areas with Council
tenants may benefit from sharing
gyms in new developments on a
charged basis, such as though the
Motiv8 brand. This needs to
systematically be considered in the
planning system, and free/low cost
onsite gyms encouraged on health
grounds.

been referenced
in the documents.

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
To make the plan sound, an additional
paragraph to follow paragraph 3.5.38
should be included to state that:
“Sites north of the Aire and Calder
Navigation also have the potential to
AVLAAP accommodate new development of
Plan rail and water freight infrastructure
Document - and interchange facilities, subject to
Publication Para Harworth Unspecifi assessment of technical feasibility and
Draft 3.5.38 Estates ed No economic viability.” Yes n/a
AVLAAP More information on decisions made
F%an available for consultations or
cument - decisions reviewed in the light of
Publication Para Ineke Unspecifi answers to the questions in the Don't
Dilaft 3.5.4 Jackson ed No numbered comments in email. know | n/a
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan National
Document - Planning &
Publication Para Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft 3.6.4 n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a
Paragraph 4.2.1, Spatial Vision third
Historic Paragraph along the following lines:-
AVLAAP England,
Plan Para National “... redevelopment of brownfield site,
Document - 421, Planning & the reuse and adaptation of its legacy
Publication Spatial Conservatio | Unspecifi of historic buildings, and reinvention of | Unspe
Draft Vision n ed No existing areas such as Leeds Dock.” cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Until such time as the HS2 station
alignment is confirmed it could be
premature to proceed towards
submission of the draft plan. If the
AVLAARP is to proceed to EiP based
on the current programme then some
contingency needs to be introduced to
account for the fact that the HS2
AVLAAP alignment could be changed and/or
Plan that further delays could be
Document - experienced in defining this alignment.
Publication Para Vastint Unspecifi | Unspecifi | This would represent a positive Unspe
Draft 4.2.20 Leeds B.V. | ed ed approach to preparation of the Plan. cified | n/a
Objectives — insert an additional
T objective along the following lines:-
& Historic
AS/LAAP England, “Encourage the conservation and
FRan Para National reuse of the area’s heritage assets to
Document - 4.2.3, Planning & create an attractive distinctive
Publication Objectiv Conservatio | Unspecifi gateway to the Aire Valley Leeds area | Unspe
Draft es n ed No from the City Centre.” cified n/a
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan National
Document - Planning &
Publication Para Conservatio | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft 4.2.6 n ed ed n/a cified | n/a
AVLAAP Para Historic Paragraph 4.3.1, Objectives — insert
Plan 431, England, an additional Objective along the
Document - Objectiv National Unspecifi following lines:- Unspe
Publication es Planning & | ed No cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Draft Conservatio “Conserve the area’s heritage assets
n and ensure that those that are vacant
or at risk have a sustainable future”
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan Para National
Document - 4.31, Planning &
Publication Spatial Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft Vision n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan Para National
Document - 441, Planning &
Pgblication Objectiv Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Haft e7 n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a
_C\D, Paragraph 4.1.1, Spatial Vision add
© an additional Paragraph along the
following lines:-
Historic “Hunslet Mill and Victoria Mill will have
AVLAAP England, been brought back into use and will
Plan Para National have become key landmark buildings
Document - 441, Planning & which have helped in increasing the
Publication Spatial Conservatio | Unspecifi attractiveness of the waterfront area Unspe
Draft Vision n ed No as a place to live and visit”. cified | n/a
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan National
Document - Planning &
Publication Para Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft 4.4.21 n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan National
Document - Planning &
Publication Para Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft 444 n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a
Paragraph 4.5.1, Objective 5 amend
to read:-
Historic
AVLAAP England, “Ensure that the river corridor and the
Plan Para National heritage assets at Thwaites Mill are
Document - 451, Planning & recognised for the attractive
Publication Objectiv Conservatio | Unspecifi environment they provide, and are Unspe
Draft eb5 n ed No widely used ... etc” cified | n/a
T Historic
A/LAAP England,
n Para National
Ddcument - 451, Planning &
Publication Spatial Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft Vision n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a
To make the plan sound in this
regard, text should be included to
confirm the acceptability of temporary
and informal uses provided that these
can operate with existing
infrastructure and do not prejudice the
AVLAAP ultimate development aspirations. An
Plan additional paragraph should therefore
Document - be added after paragraph 4.5.56 to
Publication Para Harworth Unspecifi include further details as follows:
Draft 4.5.56 Estates ed No Yes n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

“Given the location of these sites and
the cost and scale of infrastructure
requirement to facilitate development,
it is likely that an interim period may
occur before the ultimate employment
development proposals are
deliverable. During this interim period,
the sites present an opportunity for
temporary or informal uses such as
outdoor storage, energy generation
and construction/demolition material
recycling etc. Such uses will be
supported provided that they do not
prejudice the ultimate development
aspirations. The sites are well suited
to these uses given the location is
remote from any sensitive uses such
as residential areas, and that existing
infrastructure provides access via
Knowsthorpe Lane and Skelton
Grange Road.”

T8 abed

The policy and table referred to
above, as well as this section, talk
about ‘potential for 2,619 new homes’.
We have set out our reasons for
objecting to such a high figure, given
AVLAAP the detailed master planning and

Plan Para assessment work now completed
Document - 46.1- Templegate suggest a lower capacity at
Publication Spatial Developme | Unspecifi reasonable density. There are 1,800 Unspe
Draft Vision nts Ltd ed No units likely to come forward within the | cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

boundary of the land under our control
theoretically leaving 889 units to be
accommodated within the remainder
of the Site Allocation. The reality is
that site could not deliver more than
about 180 units, if it were deliverable
and available, hence other sites will
need to be found in the sub-area to
deliver the balance of 639 units.

Once again we draw attention to the
comments made earlier in respect of
Section 2 of the AAP and note the
statement:

‘Will maximise opportunities to
generate and distribute low carbon
energy to new homes and
businesses’. Whilst the reasoning is
understood, this needs to be balanced
against viability and deliverability, plus
viewed on an area wide basis.

28 abed

Paragraph 4.6.1, Spatial Vision, add
the following to the end of the first
Paragraph:-

Historic
AVLAAP England, “ ... green spaces. The development
Plan Para National will have been designed in a manner
Document - 461, Planning & which safeguards key views from the
Publication Spatial Conservatio | Unspecifi Historic Park and Garden at Temple Unspe
Draft Vision n ed No Newsam” cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Paragraph 4.6.1, Spatial Vision, add
the following to the end of the third
Historic Objective:-
AVLAAP England,
Plan Para National “ ... wider network. The development
Document - 4.6.1. Planning & will have been designed to safeguard
Publication Objectiv Conservatio | Unspecifi key views from the Historic Park and Unspe
Draft es n ed No Garden at Temple Newsam” cified | n/a
At 4.6.20 (4) ‘locate key facilities such
as school, local centre and park
centrally within the development’ but
we question who defines what
‘centrally’ means? Our master plan
tabled at a recent meeting with
S Council officers shows what we
< consider to be the appropriate
AYLAAP location. We respectfully suggest this
Pfan is deleted and that the key criteria
Document - Para Templegate relate to accessibility and
Publication 4.6.20 Developme | Unspecifi responsiveness to context, other uses | Unspe
Draft (4) nts Ltd ed No etc. cified | n/a
Para Historic Paragraph 4.6.20, Key Principles for
AVLAAP 4.6.20, England, Design add the following:
Plan Key National
Document - Principle Planning & “The development will be required to
Publication s for Conservatio | Unspecifi safeguard key views from the Historic | Unspe
Draft Design n ed No Park and Garden at Temple Newsam” | cified | n/a
AVLAAP
Plan Templegate
Document - Para Developme | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Publication 4.6.29 nts Ltd ed ed n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Draft

AVLAAP

Plan

Document - Templegate

Publication Para Developme | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe

Draft 4.6.38 nts Ltd ed ed n/a cified | n/a

‘The area map identifies important
green infrastructure corridors...” but
our clients have indicated they would
like some of the woodland adjacent to
the junction to be removed and

AVLAAP replanted in order to facilitate a better

RPian overall development, it would

Fcument - Templegate therefore be helpful to have some

Publication Para Developme | Unspecifi flexibility around the wording in this Unspe
[Faft 4.6.43 nts Ltd ed No paragraph. cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

At 4.6.47 it states that ‘Most of the
green space should be provided in the
form of a community park’. This is not
entirely consistent with the proposals
being formulated which will
incorporate generous and varied open
space provision, but not all on one
park as such. For example there will
be some provision on the western
flank of our site to meet some of the
key LCC open space categories. The
central location of this park as
indicated in the second sentence of
this paragraph could, subject to scale,

9 mean we lose development parcels
Q on some of the best unconstrained
o°) land which is not sensible given the
@ overall reduction in capacity. Again,
flexibility is needed and other
AVLAAP performance criteria used to define
Plan the location as suggested under
Document - Templegate 4.6.20 above. Until such time as this
Publication Para Developme | Unspecifi amendment is made we maintain an Unspe
Draft 4.6.47 nts Ltd ed No objection. cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

To make the plan sound in this
regard, NRW Site 200 should be
indicated on the plan as an
employment site (overlaid with the
waste treatment designation) as
shown on plan ref.

A3\LLE\BUS\001_A. Corresponding
text in the AAP document should be
amended within table 2 and at
paragraph 3.2.16 and 4.5.50 as
suggested below.

Table 2: Schedule of Identified

B General Employment Sites

«Q

> Site No.  Site Name

o Area (ha)
NRW 200  Skelton Grange (West)
11
The text at paragraph 3.2.16 should
be amended to include further details
as follows:

Paras

AVLAAP 3.2.15 “...Development for energy generation

Plan (Table or general employment at NRW Site

Document - 2), 200 is allowed provided that it is

Publication 3.2.16 & Harworth Unspecifi demonstrated that there is no

Draft 4.5.50 Estates ed No requirement for or feasible Yes n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

development for waste treatment use
for all or part of the site.”

The text at paragraph 4.5.50 should
be amended to include further details
as follows:

“...Should this development not come
forward, then alternative development
of the site for waste treatment and/or
energy generation and/or general
employment will be allowed provided
it is demonstrated that there is no
requirement for or feasible
development for waste treatment use
for all or part of the site.”

/8 abed

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

To make the plan sound in this
regard, the following sections should
be amended to facilitate development
of a wider range of energy generation
facilities.

Paragraph 3.7.10 should be amended
to include further details as follows:

“Solar energy is collected through
either photovoltaic (generating
electricity) or solar thermal panels.
AVL is identified as an area with
significant potential for installation of

T solar panels on existing buildings,

& [and] within new developments and

> with standalone installations,

© including, for example, the park & ride
facility at Temple Green, [and] on
commercial buildings with large roof
areas and solar farm installations.”
An additional sub-heading and
paragraph should be added after
paragraph 3.7.17 to include further
details as follows:

AVLAAP

Plan “Flexible Energy Supply

Document - Paras

Publication 3.7.10 & Harworth Unspecifi Appropriate sites within AVL may be

Draft 3.7.18 Estates ed No suitable for energy generation Yes n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

facilities additional to the range of
renewable and energy-from-waste
infrastructure, potentially including
STOR (short term operating reserve)
generating facilities. This flexible
generation of electricity responds to
increased demand at peak times.”

Please also note that the publication
draft AAP is numbered incorrectly
between paragraphs 3.7.17 and

3.7.20.
-
QD
Q
(¢}
00}
©
AVLAAP Historic
Plan England,
Document - Paras National Insert an additional Policy which
Publication 4.2.32 to Planning & | Unspecifi includes the requirements of Unspe
Draft 4.2.46 Conservatio | ed No Paragraphs 4.2.32 t0 4.2.46. cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
n
Historic

AVLAAP England,

Plan National

Document - Paras Planning &

Publication 442310 Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe

Draft 4.4.29 n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a

To make the plan sound in this
regard, the alignment of the former rail
spur and its interface with the main
line should be indicated and
safeguarded for potential rail freight
access to serve site AV68 and the
wider employment area as shown on
plan ref. AS\LLE\BUS\001_A. In
particular, key existing infrastructure
should be specifically referenced and
safeguarded for this purpose,
including the bridges over the
river/canal, the motorway underpass
and the main line interface strip south
of the river/canal.

06 abed

Notwithstanding its basis in the
AVLAAP NRWLP (policy Mineral 13(5)), the
Plan indicated intermodal freight area of
Document - Paras search south of the river should be
Publication 4.5.51 to Harworth Unspecifi extended to include site AV68 and the
Draft 4.5.52 Estates ed No land to the southeast of this around Yes n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

T6 obed

the rail spur as shown on plan ref.
A3\LLE\BUS\001_A.

The text at paragraph 4.5.51 should
be amended to include further details
as follows:

“...alongside construction of the ERF.
This site benefits from a position
which may incorporate the alignment
of a rail spur to accommodate rail
served development or interchange.
To preserve the opportunity for rail
served development the site included
within the intermodal freight area of
search.”

The text at paragraph 4.5.52 should
be amended to include further details
as follows:

“A further 7.8 hectares of land to the
south (AV68) is also carried forward
from the UDP and identified as a
general employment site. This site
benefits from a position that
incorporates the alignment of the rail
spur which served the former power
station and which may potentially be
reinstated to accommodate rail served
development or interchange. To

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

preserve the opportunity for rail
served development, the alignment of
the rail spur and its interface with
existing line is safeguarded, and the
site included within the intermodal
freight area of search. As delivery of
rail served development will depend
upon a viable proposition given
prevailing demand and the cost of
development, its inclusion is not a
condition of development of this site.”

At 4.6.27 ‘provision of supporting
facilities within early phases’ again we
would welcome a definition of ‘early’.
Our suggestion is this is linked to

T
& trigger points, probably housing
E completions.
N
At 4.6.28 and in Policy AVL7 we again
question the requirement for a through
school, given the case for a
secondary school has not yet been
made or properly explained.
AVLAAP At paragraph 4.6.29 highway access
Plan is discussed and we make clear later
Document - Paras Templegate in these representations that we
Publication 4.6.27 - Developme | Unspecifi favour a single main point of access Unspe
Draft 4.6.29 nts Ltd ed No direct off the M1 interchange. cified n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

Plan introduction and overview to be
strengthened in the light of comments
from partners, including these. Better
information on qualitative outcomes
and quantitative metrics

resulting from the spacial allocations,
including housing affordability, CO2
emissions etc. You look at what you
can do in terms of allocating green
space, civic space, community
facilities,

community infrastructure, self-build
T housing, affordable housing,

%/LAAP New, East moveable affordable housing. You Not consistent
Réan and South look at what must happen in relation with sustainable
Bdcument - Leeds to legal compliance in relation to the development. Not
Publication Section Community | Unspecifi Social Value Act and Human rights consistent with
Draft 1 Body ed No act. No social value act.
AVLAAP

Plan

Document - Many of the aims for the South Bank

Publication Section Leeds Civic | Unspecifi | Unspecifi | area should be applied to the whole of | Unspe

Draft 4.2 Trust ed ed city centre south. cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

A concentration of relevant policies
and details within the AVLAAP/Site
Allocations Plan, complimented by the
masterplan, would enable the SBPS
to be withdrawn. This would simplify
the basis against which investment
and planning decisions are made, and
reduce the risk of confusion and
contradiction. Relevant matters
covered by the SBPS, not currently
addressed within either the AVLAAP
or SAP are as follows:

§ The principle of fair apportionment
of the City Centre Park (approximately

T
& 3.5has in total) between development

o Section sites; and

AYLAAP 42 -

Plan South § Confirmation that the City Centre

Document - Bank Park does not need to be one

Publication Area Vastint Unspecifi | Unspecifi | contiguous area, but can be a series Unspe

Draft Plan Leeds B.V. | ed ed of inter-linked spaces. cified |n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development



Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

For information: Paragraph 4.5.47
refers to the potential to link to the
Skelton Gate site to the east of the
M1, along Knowsthorpe Lane via an
existing underpass beneath the
motorway. This may be a longer term
option for a bus route, but only if it
becomes available given third party
land interests. In the meantime the
primary access to the A63 will be
utilised for all vehicles including Park
& Ride buses.

For information: It is noted below that

Q‘? paragraph 4.5.34 outlines the
Q Council’s aspiration to green the
© industrial areas. We have taken into
a account the aspiration to naturalise
Wyke Beck, retain green links and
AVLAAP Section incorporate some tree planting in
Plan 4.5; bringing forward detailed proposals.
Document - Paras Templegate The relevant schemes can be found
Publication 4.5.34 & Developme | Unspecifi | Unspecifi | on the LCC planning applications Unspe
Draft 4.5.47 nts Ltd ed ed portal. cified |n/a
AVLAAP West
Plan Yorkshire
Document - Fire &
Publication Rescue Unspecifi Don't
Draft AV11 Service ed Yes n/a know | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

96 abed

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

AVL12

Highways
England

Unspecifi
ed

No

It needs to be made clear that a
comprehensive package of
improvement schemes on the
Strategic Road Network including
schemes additional to those in the
RIS is necessary to cater for the
increased demand for road travel
generated by the development
proposals in Aire Valley Leeds and in
the wider area of Leeds District.

More detail needs to be provided in
the Draft Plan than is included in
paragraphs 3.5.11 - 3.5.13 and Policy
AVL12 based on the information
provided earlier in this response form.
The supporting information in the
Infrastructure Schedules in the
Infrastructure Delivery Plans for Aire
Valley Leeds will need to be modified
and expanded in accordance with the
detailed information provided in other
parts of the Highways England
responses to consultation on both
Local Plan Publication Drafts.

Construction of sites with the greatest
individual traffic impact should also be
phased to take place following
completion of the committed RIS
improvements

Don't
know

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Inclusion in the section on public
AVLAAP transport of a reference to providing
Plan any infrastructure necessary to
Document - facilitate the operation of a bus
Publication Highways Unspecifi service between the Five Towns and Don't
Draft AVL12 England ed No Leeds through Aire Valley Leeds. know | n/a
Linked in part to a larger than
anticipated planned population on the
Brewery site, and across the wider
South Bank, and the definition of an
‘Education Hub’ directly adjoining the
area, it would appear logical to at
least plan for the possibility of the
Education Hub accommodating a
S primary school presence; i.e. to
<Q compliment the secondary school and
9 higher education uses on the site.
Future-proofing the scope for school
provision in this manner would
AVLAAP support the objectives of encouraging
Plan a greater housing mix in the City
Document - Centre, representing a positive and
Publication | Policy Vastint Unspecifi | Unspecifi | effective approach to supporting the Unspe
Draft AVL10 Leeds B.V. | ed ed strategic planning context. cified | n/a
AVLAAP There may be other more sensible
Plan solutions available off site. That said
Document - | Policy Templegate we are well aware of the CIL
Publication | AVL10 Developme | Unspecifi contributions applicable, but the Unspe
Draft (2) nts Ltd ed No balance of funding is far from clear. cified | n/a
AVLAAP Policy Historic Unspecifi | Yes n/a Unspe | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Plan AVL11 England, ed cified
Document - National
Publication Planning &
Draft Conservatio
n

Policy P11 of the Core Strategy, to
which AVL11 references, includes
detail on the approach adopted
(reflecting national guidance) in
instances where it may be necessary
to demolish an undesignated asset. It
would be helpful to clarify within Policy
AVL11 itself that there may be
instances where assets cannot be

AYLAAP conserved, and that proposals in such

Ban circumstances will be assessed

ocument - against the measures outlined

PRblication | Policy Vastint Unspecifi elsewhere within the Development Unspe

Draft AVL11 Leeds B.V. | ed No Plan. cified | n/a

We welcome the inclusion of Policy
AVL11 - Locally Significant
Undesignated Heritage Assets, but in
addition to marking them on a map,
the urban design assessment referred
to should be included in the Plan. or
an appendix, specifically itemising

AVLAAP each by address, together with a

Plan description of their significance using

Document - the methodology set out in Historic

Publication | Policy Leeds Civic | Unspecifi | Unspecifi | England’s guidance. There is Unspe

Draft AVL11 Trust ed ed otherwise a danger that the aim to cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
conserve them could be undermined
on appeal, through lack of evidence.
Policy AVL11 amend to read:-
Historic
AVLAAP England, “ In accordance with Core Strategy
Plan National Policy P11, the locally significant
Document - Planning & undesignated heritage assets shown
RPiblication Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi on the area maps and their settings Unspe
[ aft AVL11 n ed No will be conserved.” cified | n/a
8 In the absence of such clarification the
policy could be read as granting
deemed approval for a series of works
without further detailed consultation
AVLAAP and consideration. The owners would
Plan Aviva not anticipate LCC adopting such an
Document - Investors & approach, but in order to be sound —
Publication | Policy The Crown | Unspecifi effective and justified — the policy Unspe
Draft AVL12 Estate ed No should be clear on this point. cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

AVLAAP
Plan
Bcument -
Biblication

Policy
AVL12

Vastint

Leeds B.V.

Unspecifi
ed

Unspecifi
ed

Vastint support objectives surrounding
the introduction of measures to
‘reduce the physical and visual impact
of vehicular traffic infrastructure’ in the
South Bank area (Highway Network,
point 3), but linked to the strategic
importance of the Brewery site, it is
essential that Vastint are consulted
over the consideration of any
consequent changes to road layouts,
their priorities and purpose. They are,
and should be recognised as a key
stakeholder in this process.

We would be grateful if this could be
noted and addressed as the process
moves forward.

Unspe
cified

n/a

Mraft
o

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

Policy
AVL12

Para
3.5.18

Harworth
Estates

Unspecifi
ed

No

To make the plan sound, policy
AVL12 should be amended to reflect
paragraph 3.5.18 as follows:

“Highway Network

2. Upgrade and adoption of
Knowsthorpe Lane and/or the
construction of a link road, including
improvements to the junction at
Skelton Grange Road and Pontefract
Road and new river bridge at Skelton
Grange, to connect the AG3 to
Pontefract Road to the A63/M1

Yes

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

junction 45 to enable better road
access to employment development
sites and to allow traffic including
public transport and the
cycle/pedestrian network to cross the
river.”

The central area map should also be
amended to indicate the alignment of
Knowsthorpe Lane as a potential
primary route for vehicular traffic as
shown on plan ref.
A3\LLE\BUS\001_A, not just for
pedestrian/cycle and public transport

Y use.
Q Natural
AVLAAP England,
Rfan Yorkshire
Document - and
Publication | Policy Northern Unspecifi
Draft AVL13 Lincolnshire | ed Yes n/a Yes n/a
Object to various land holdings being
included as green infrastructure at
Haigh Park Road including the lakes -
The sites should be excluded from the
green infrastructure plan and included
AVLAAP within the adjacent employment
Plan allocations. This better reflects the
Document - nature of the sites (ie.they are poor
Publication | Policy Towngate Unspecifi quality landscaping within a wider
Draft AVL13 Map 5 Plc ed No industrial and commercial area). No n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
We object to the inclusion of various
pieces of land within the green
infrastructure and open space
allocation. sites should be excluded
from the green infrastructure plan and
AVLAAP included within the adjacent
Plan employment allocations. This better
Document - reflects the nature of the sites (ie. they
Publication | Policy Map 5, Towngate Unspecifi are poor quality landscaping within a
Draft AVL14 13& 14 | Plc ed No wider industrial and commercial area). | No n/a
Natural
AVLAAP England,
Plan Yorkshire
Document - and
RRblication Policy Northern Unspecifi
(Faft AVL14 Lincolnshire | ed Yes n/a Yes n/a
P Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan National
Document - Planning &
Publication | Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft AVL15 n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a
Policy AVL16 add an additional
Historic sentence along the following lines:-
AVLAAP England,
Plan National “Where retrofitting works are
Document - Planning & proposed to a Listed Building, these
Publication | Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi should safeguard the special historic Unspe
Draft AVL16 n ed No character of that building” cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
It is not entirely clear how the network

AVLAAP will be accommodated and funded in

Plan the locations between participating

Document - sites which might be highway land or

Publication | Policy Leeds Civic | Unspecifi | Unspecifi | existing operational sites. No doubt Unspe

Draft AVL17 Trust ed ed this will be dealt with in the guidance. | cified | n/a

The proposed connection to the
Heating Network, and the alignment of
the connection, is not suitable,

AVLAAP available or deliverable. In this context

Plan we request that the notation on Map 6
Document - Muse is removed in relation to the Site and
Publication | Policy Developme | Unspecifi any requirements under Policy Unspe
Draft AVL17 Map 6 nts Ltd ed No AVLA17. cified | n/a
3

«Q

(]

H

o

w

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

To ensure consistency and legibility of
the plan the two policies should be
merged with AVL4. For the reasons
above (duplication of policy) policy
AVL2 is superfluous. We therefore

object to the inclusion of AVL2 in the
emerging plan. The key policy
matters and associated allocations
covered by AVL2 should be
transferred to policy AVL4 to ensure
the emerging plan is clear, consistent
and concise. We suggest the
following changes to policy AVL4. The

© changes are shown within the

S structure of the current draft for ease

P of reference.

N
1. New development for research &
development (Use Class B1b), light
industry (Use Class B1c), general
industry (Use Class B1c) and storage
& distribution (Use Class B8) uses,
along with ancillary office (Use Class
B1a) and other uses (subject to part 2
below), will be promoted and

AVLAAP concentrated in the following locations

Plan as defined on area maps:

Document -

Publication | Policy Towngate Unspecifi * Leeds City Region Enterprise Zone

Draft AVL2 Plc ed No No n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

GOT abed

* Cross Green Industrial Estate
* Hunslet (defined employment areas)
Stourton Skelton Grange

2. Alternative uses will be supported
where there is no prospect of the site
being brought forward for general
employment uses, or the

proposed use will support the function
of the area

3. The South Bank area and the
Marsh Lane site are identified as
suitable locations for research &
development uses subject to the
provisions of Policy AVL7 and site
requirements set out in area plans.

4. Leeds Valley Park (Site AV81) is
identified as a suitable location for
general employment uses.

5. The following sites are allocated for
general employment use, with other
uses supported where ancillary to the
main general employment function (as
per part 2 of this policy), in ccordance
with Core Strategy Spatial Policy 9.

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

90T abed

These sites are shown on the Policies
Map and are subject to site
requirements set out in area plans...

[Then contained is the list of sites,
which should include those
transferred from Policy AVLZ2]

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Respondent

Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
The publication draft AAP is
considered not to be sound on the
basis that it does not make effective
use of the land and infrastructure
available for employment
development.
To make the plan sound in this
regard, the boundary of site AV68
AVLAAP should be extended to the south as
Plan shown on plan ref.
Document - A3\LLE\BUS\001_A with a
Publication | Policy Harworth Unspecifi consequential increase in its stated
Draft AVL2 Estates ed No area from 7.33ha. Yes n/a
&
«Q
(¢}
H
o
N

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

To ensure consistency and legibility of
the plan the two policies should be
merged with AVL4. For the reasons
above (duplication of policy) policy
AVL2 is superfluous. We therefore

object to the inclusion of AVL2 in the
emerging plan. The key policy
matters and associated allocations
covered by AVL2 should be
transferred to policy AVL4 to ensure
the emerging plan is clear, consistent
and concise. We suggest the
following changes to policy AVL4. The

© changes are shown within the

S structure of the current draft for ease

P of reference.

(o)
1. New development for research &
development (Use Class B1b), light
industry (Use Class B1c), general
industry (Use Class B1c) and storage
& distribution (Use Class B8) uses,
along with ancillary office (Use Class
B1a) and other uses (subject to part 2
below), will be promoted and

AVLAAP concentrated in the following locations

Plan as defined on area maps:

Document -

Publication | Policy Towngate Unspecifi * Leeds City Region Enterprise Zone

Draft AVL4 Plc ed No No n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

60T abed

* Cross Green Industrial Estate
* Hunslet (defined employment areas)
Stourton Skelton Grange

2. Alternative uses will be supported
where there is no prospect of the site
being brought forward for general
employment uses, or the

proposed use will support the function
of the area

3. The South Bank area and the
Marsh Lane site are identified as
suitable locations for research &
development uses subject to the
provisions of Policy AVL7 and site
requirements set out in area plans.

4. Leeds Valley Park (Site AV81) is
identified as a suitable location for
general employment uses.

5. The following sites are allocated for
general employment use, with other
uses supported where ancillary to the
main general employment function (as
per part 2 of this policy), in ccordance
with Core Strategy Spatial Policy 9.

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

OTT 9bed

These sites are shown on the Policies
Map and are subject to site
requirements set out in area plans...

[Then contained is the list of sites,
which should include those
transferred from Policy AVLZ2]

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

Policy AVL3 refers to the South Bank
as having an estimated capacity for
office uses equating to 73,500 sgm,
with Policy AVL7 identifying an
estimated dwelling capacity of 825
units. Neither policy directly imposes a
limit on development, but nor do they
explicitly confirm that the figures are
elastic and/or could be treated as
minimum requirements, where
appropriate.

Reference to specific figures without
relevant clarification could be read as

U some form of restriction, particularly
QD
Q where there does not appear to be
- any clear and transparent approach to
- calculating capacity.
Initial work undertaken by Vastint
indicates that the capacity of the
Brewery site alone could significantly
exceed (particularly for housing) that
quoted in the draft AVLAAP.
When considering the scale of the site
AVLAAP this is not surprising. The accessibility
Plan credentials of the site by noncar
Document - modes — to be further enhanced by
Publication | Policy Vastint NGT and new pedestrian routes — Unspe
Draft AVL7 Leeds B.V. | Support | No support a high density scheme. For cified |n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

211 abed

example, adopting Transport for
London’s PTAL (Public Transport
Accessibility Level) criteria, or Greater
Manchester’s Accessibility Level
(GMAL) approach, the site has
excellent access by public transport
which would, in turn, support a high
density of development.

Notwithstanding the land-take
requirements of the City Park,
adopting a development density
anywhere near that of modern
schemes in the surrounding area (e.g.
Brewery Wharf, New Dock, Velocity,
etc) would generate a quantum of
floorspace/unit count far in excess of
that suggested within the draft
policies.

Therefore, to be consistent with the
Core Strategy (and the Framework)
spatial approach to directing new
development to the City Centre, and
subject to normal development control
considerations, clarification should be
added to each Policy (AV3 and AV7)
confirming that the figures are quoted
for indicative purposes only, and are
to be considered as the minimum
quantum of development that could be

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
accommodated in the South Bank
area. This is a positive and justified
approach to these policies.
o
QD
«Q
(¢}
H
|_\
w
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan National
Document - Planning &
Publication | Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft AVL7 n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
A dialogue with housing developers
and their agents representing the
whole industry is needed. However,
the comments of the Chief Planning
Officer that "It may take some time
AVLAAP before we are in a position to convene
Plan a group to inform this work and to
Document - consult on initial thoughts." (we have
Publication | Policy | Para Indigo Unspecifi attached the relevant email) are not Don't
Draft AVL7 |3.3.18 Planning ed No reassuring. know |n/a
AVLAAP
Plan
Document - | Policy Templegate
RHincation AVL9 Developme | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
_Iglcraft (4) nts Ltd ed ed We support this policy. cified | n/a
@ Policy CAV1, insert the site
= requirements which would need to be
» taken into account should proposals
for redevelopment of this area come
forward during the plan period. These
should include a bullet-point along the
following lines:-
Historic “This site lies adjacent to a Registered
AVLAAP England, Historic Park and Garden.
Plan National Development proposals should
Document - Planning & safeguard those elements which
Publication | Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi contribute to its significance including | Unspe
Draft CAV1 n ed No its setting”. cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
AVLAAP

Plan West The AAP could include mention of the

Document - Paras Yorkshire potential NGT extension including

Publication | Policy | 3.2.2 & Combined Unspecifi | paragraph para 3.2.2 and 3.5.7 and Unspe

Draft CAV1 |357 Authority Support | ed Map 4 cified | n/a

To make the plan sound in this
regard, paragraph 4.5.33 should be
amended to include further details

as follows:

“A significant opportunity is identified
on the northern bank of the river. This
area of land is allocated for
employment use in the UDP, but is
not considered to be deliverable for
development during the plan period
due to the high costs of remediating
contaminated land. The land includes
former sludge lagoons associated with
the Knostrop works and adjoining land
to the south covering a total area of
over 20 hectares. [Vegetation on the
land is naturally re-growing and] The
land provides an opportunity for
enhancement to create a mix of
AVLAAP natural habitats including community
Plan woodland, grassland and

Document - semipermanent wetlands, as well as
Publication | Policy | Para Harworth Unspecifi the potential to accommodate

Draft CAV3 |4.5.33 Estates ed No drainage features (SUDS) and to grow | Yes n/a

GTT abed

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

9TT abed

crops for energy generation. To
realise this potential, ground
improvement works are required
including the import and removal of
material to treat the ground and create
sustainable growing conditions.”

Policy CAV3 should be amended to
include further details as follows:

‘POLICY CAV3 — GREEN
INSTRUCTURE IN THE CENTRAL
AIRE VALLEY

...1. Integration and improvement of
20 hectares of previously developed,
former employment land, to the north
of the River Aire and west of the M1
motorway into the wider green
infrastructure network, with the
potential to include drainage features
(SUDS) and energy crops as well as
natural habitats.”

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

Policy
EB4

Historic
England,
National
Planning &
Conservatio
n

Unspecifi
ed

No

Policy EB4, first Paragraph amend the
end to read:-

“ ... where it supports the guiding
principles of the area set out in this
plan and would not result in the loss of
buildings which make a positive
contribution to the character of the

Unspe
cified

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
area.”
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Plan National
Document - Planning &
Publication | Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft HU2 n ed Yes n/a cified | n/a
Commercial
Estates
AVLAAP Group on
Rian behalf of
Bpcument - ASE Il
Publication | Policy Maps 3 Developme | Unspecifi
lﬁaft SB1 &4 nts Ltd ed No Nothing specified Yes n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

A positive and effective approach to
promotion of pedestrian/cycle links
would recognise the importance of
both the new southern access to the
train station and the existing entrance
points onto an improved City Square
for any new office (and residential)
development on the Brewery site (and
elsewhere within the South Bank).
Recognising these clear desire lines
in the consideration of applications,
and the following masterplan work,
will be essential irrespective of the
decision regarding location of the HS2

> station.
3
R The link with the southern access is
© referenced within the ‘Site Allocations
and Requirements’ text (see below),
but not reflected in the policy or on the
AVLAAP Proposals Map. A greater focus on
Plan this and the link with City Square
Document - would also encourage footfall and
Publication | Policy Vastint Unspecifi public realm improvements across a Unspe
Draft SB1 Leeds B.V. | ed No wide area of the City Centre core. cified | n/a
Historic Policy SB2 add the following
AVLAAP England, additional design principle:-
Plan National
Document - Planning & “Create opportunities to improve the
Publication | Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi setting of the Listed Buildings and Unspe
Draft SB2 n ed No Locally Significant Undesignated cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

Assets in the area”

6TT abed

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

Policy
SB2

Vastint
Leeds B.V.

Unspecifi
ed

No

Delivery of a high quality park clearly

has a significant financial impact on a
development related to the cost of the
works themselves and the fact that it

reduces the overall developable area

of the site.

It is, therefore, important that this
burden is spread fairly across the
wider area so as not to frustrate
investment and development. The
SBPS is very clear in stating that each
development site will contribute 20%
of their site area to delivery of the
Park.

Without such clarification being added
to Policy SB2 it provides an uncertain
context for development. The SBPS is
also clear in stating that the overall
concept of the Park will reflect a
series of linked spaces, as opposed to
one contiguous area. This enables a
more flexible approach to be adopted
to delivery of both the Park and
associated development, and should
be incorporated within Policy SB2.

Unspe
cified

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent
Legal comments

02T abed

An effective solution would be to
revise Policy SB2 to incorporate
reference to the 20% threshold, and
the concept of a series of linked green
spaces, currently included in the
SBPS. This is particularly important in
the event that the SBPS is
consequently withdrawn.

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

In light of the fact that a significant
proportion of the site will be dedicated
to the City Park, the Policy should
specifically recognise the fact that
there will be no double-counting of the
open space requirements under Core
Strategy Policy GP5.

The Policy needs to ensure that
developers are not unduly burdened
by the combined requirements to
provide the City Park and further open
space beyond that which would
ordinarily be deemed appropriate

3 through the design process.
«Q
(,i We recommend that the policy is
~ revised to state that provision of the
City Centre Park (in accordance with
AVLAAP a revised Policy SB2) will be taken
Plan into account when calculating the
Document - green space requirements of a
Publication | Policy Vastint Unspecifi development under Core Strategy Unspe
Draft SB3 Leeds B.V. | ed No Policy GP5. cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

Vastint’s vision for the Brewery site
currently incorporates the majority, if
not all of the ‘appropriate’ uses listed
in the policy.

However, it also includes uses beyond
this list including ‘creative industries’
clusters, and small scale comparison
goods retail, for example. By
definition, these uses would be
considered ‘inappropriate’ as drafted.

A more positive approach would be to
maximize the scope of ‘appropriate’

§ uses, subject to relevant controls.
(¢]
5 Creative industrial uses reflect the
N overall objective for the South Bank
as a place where people can live and
work in a sustainable community.
They would typically comprise ‘B1’
uses, being complimentary to a
residential context, but are not a
‘B1(a) office’ use. Other B1 uses
should be specifically referenced as
appropriate within the policy.
AVLAAP
Plan It is acknowledged that the approach
Document - to considering proposals for new retail
Publication | Policy Vastint Unspecifi uses outside of defined shopping Unspe
Draft SB4 Leeds B.V. | ed No centres is set out in the Core Strategy, | cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments

but this does not state that such
development would be ‘inappropriate’.
Therefore, it is recommended that a
further criterion should be added to
the policy confirming that other
alternative uses will be deemed
appropriate, subject to consideration
against the relevant policies of the
Development Plan.

g21 abed

AVLAAP
Plan

Document - Templegate
Publication | Policy Developme | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft SG1 nts Ltd ed ed n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Document

Policy

Para

Diagram

Submitter

Agree

Sound

Respondent changes sought

Legal

Respondent

Legal comments

y2T abed

AVLAAP
Plan
Document -
Publication
Draft

Policy
SG2
(4)

Map 12

Harworth
Estates

Unspecifi
ed

No

The publication draft AAP is
considered not to be sound as it does
not present a deliverable and
compatible provision for the rail spur
and pedestrian/cycle route
enhancement.

To make the plan sound in this
regard, the map should be amended
to remove the indication of
pedestrian/cycle route from the
safeguarded alignment of the rail spur
and, in particular, the bridge
infrastructure as shown on plan ref.
A3\LLE\BUS\001_A (see attached

plan).

See also Harworth Estates’
representation HE_2 regarding the
boundary of Aire Valley Leeds in this
location and the interface between the
rail spur and the main line.

See also Harworth Estates’
representation HE_7 regarding road
infrastructure, which states that
Knowsthorpe Lane should not be
identified as a route solely for
pedestrian/cycle and public transport
use, but should be upgraded to also
provide vehicular access to the

Yes

n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
employment development sites
including the former Skelton Grange
power station site.
o
QD
«Q
(¢}
H
N
a1
AVLAAP
Plan
Document - Templegate
Publication | Policy Developme | Unspecifi Unspe
Draft SG4 nts Ltd ed No n/a cified | n/a
Historic
AVLAAP England,
Sustainabili National
ty Planning & | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Appraisal Conservatio | ed ed n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
n
The Sustainability Appraisal
methodology and assessment
AVLAAP process needs to be revised and
Sustainabili undertaken again taking into account
ty The Coal Unspecifi unstable land as a relevant
Appraisal Authority ed No consideration. Yes n/a
Historic
England,
AVLAAP Appendi National
Sustainabili x7,SA Planning &
ty Objectiv Conservatio | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Appraisal e’ n ed ed n/a cified | n/a
- Appendi Historic
) x 9, SA England,
B/LAAP Objectiv National
Sustainabili e 21, Planning &
t§> Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Appraisal AVL16 n ed ed n/a cified | n/a
Appendi Historic
x 9, SA England,
AVLAAP Objectiv National
Sustainabili e 21, Planning &
ty Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Appraisal CAV1 n ed ed n/a cified | n/a
Appendi Historic
x 9, SA England,
AVLAAP Objectiv National
Sustainabili e 21, Planning &
ty Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Appraisal EB4 n ed ed n/a cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
Appendi Historic
x 9, SA England,

AVLAAP Objectiv National

Sustainabili e 21, Planning &

ty Policy Conservatio | Unspecifi | Unspecifi Unspe
Appraisal SB2 n ed ed n/a cified | n/a
AVLAAP

Sustainabili

ty Para Leeds City | Unspecifi Don't
Appraisal 3.2.27 Council ed No n/a know | n/a

(1) a review and improvement of the

- bus services that currently serve the

2 Aire Valley area, especially Cross

) Green Industrial Estate, so they are

N upgraded and allow workers to leave

~ their cars at home and use public

transport.

AVLAAP (2) a public transport strategy for the

Sustainabili Aire Valley development area - to

ty ensure that good public transport is
Appraisal - provided , to encourage less car

Non usage from the staff of the new

Technical Leeds City | Unspecifi businesses and residents of the new | Don't
Summary SA15 | Para 2.7 Council ed No homes. know | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent

Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
AVLAAP

Sustainabili

ty Address the lack of public transport

Appraisal - especially from railway station to Arie

Non Valley region - avoid cars using the

Technical Leeds City | Unspecifi M62 commuter route which is already | Don't
Summary SA18 Council ed No overcrowdwd. know | n/a
Employme

Backgroun Leeds City | Unspecifi Don't
dPaper Para 5.7 Council ed No n/a know | n/a
(o)

In light of matters raised under (a) and
the strategic importance of the
Brewery site to the City Centre and
Aire Valley regeneration objectives, it
is essential that

Vastint are heavily involved in the
masterplan process from the earliest
possible stage. They are, and should
be recognised as a key stakeholder in
this process.

South Bank Vastint Unspecifi | Unspecifi | We would be grateful if this could be Unspe
Masterplan Leeds B.V. | ed ed noted and addressed as the process | cified | n/a

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent
The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Respondent
Document | Policy | Para Diagram | Submitter | Agree Sound Respondent changes sought Legal | Legal comments
moves forward.
o
QD
«Q
(¢}
H
N
©

Appendix A - Schedule 2 Summary of General changes sought by the respondent

The full submission is available electronically from City Development




Appendix C - Potential option to accommodate changes to SG1 and associated
preamble in relation to submission from Extra MSA

4.6.36

4.6.37

4.6.38

4.6.39

Due to constraints, some parts of the site are not be suitable or viable for
housing. Some of these areas can be incorporated within the green
infrastructure requirements of the development, or incorporate specific
commercial uses where this would be consistent with and help to facilitate
housing development. Accommodating other uses could assist viability,
thereby funding new infrastructure and facilities required in the early
development phases.

Proposals for other uses would need to be incorporated within the overall
masterplan for the site, help facilitate the delivery of the housing scheme and
be phased alongside new housing. Proposals which would lead to the
creation of a destination serving a wide catchment area, such as a
retail/leisure park;_and metorway- service- area- oF other formats which
from-would attract an unacceptably high number of additional trips utilising
the motorway network would not be consistent with this approach.

A food store is an acceptable use providing the scale is limited to that
normally permitted within a local centre (up to 2,000 sgm gross floorspace).
The location of the store should be linked into the local centre to allow
people to walk between the two along a safe and direct route. This size of
store would help to serve the weekly shopping needs of future residents of
Skelton Gate, but it should not be of a scale which would attract trips to the
site from long distances.

Office or other business units could also act as a buffer between the
motorway and housing development along the western boundary of the site
within the area indicated on the area map and could also help sustain local
employment.

POLICY SG1: SKELTON GATE — NON-HOUSING USES

Within the framework established in the overall masterplan, the following
additional uses will be permitted with preference given to locations within the
site which have been identified as most constrained for housing development
and subject to compatibility with the following requirements:

1.

A food store up to a maximum gross internal floorspace of 2,000 sq. m.
to be located within or integrated with the local centre and connected to
the rest of the centre by safe and direct pedestrian routes.

Offices and/or other business uses (Class B1) along the western
boundary of the site within the broad area indicated on the area plan, up
to maximum total gross internal floorspace of 10,000 square metres.
Other commercial uses not specified above or by other policies in this
plan, providing they can be integrated with the wider housing site and
would enhance the viability and deliverability of the overall development

Page 130



and help to deliver a sustainable housing development in accordance
with Policy AVL7.

4. Contribute towards initiatives and requirements stated in _policies SG2,
SG3 and SGA4.

The development of the alternative commercial uses should be phased
alongside delivery of new housing and other facilities.

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



S T Y R G (\V O /e G e e e e e — — — .
o S &

—
—
—_—
— e

hema el
] 2 -
o —— |
—

Proposed Draft AAP i

\ , allocation 99.3 Ha
A\ / (Capacity
N2l 25619 dweliings)

,f/;// = 7 ‘ N L/ >,
P’ \ Templegateiland "‘\', %
R 2 A AN (€xistingideveloptment site) \\ /
W< ExtraMSA land \@) A\
(existing \\ ) A\ /[ /
/Il developmentsite] S Esitn \% A \4
2 g7 3 AN
R Dl o '. N vs /
€ .53"'::::::::::...’ 2 ‘

‘.
g q N s’
......... : §§§ 4 . N f"‘j’.~.‘

Templegate
(Green Belt land)

//// N32 Green Belt

Templegate
28.5Ha  (Green Belt land)

%, e /“’"“"sf'g’;t‘;“‘% }"”’B’Q Templegate land
PN/ - , of: S T b e AL T 503 Ha| Templegate lan _
) "'i : barea i K A Darg e (existing development site)
XSS 2, 7 BTV g LI L TR e
9\%}5‘.--"1 .4 7~ ."’ /’—' A sy -

S Vi

AL, S S FAAL LT D) P e :
AR vq.’ll,,..lg,.,,_lllll A EAALT AL AL 7K 10.5 Ha | EXtra MSA land |
',l ANGE L L Lttt o 75 7 ..~"7$5"?" £ , L5 & (existing development site)
b\.g!.é_-ffgéggr;sggss'—i L ’.'_' K ZZHAL A XL l'\\A\ F A7 7 7 77 77777

el Pl 7 A7\ rud

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019567 You are not permitted to copy, Sub-Licence, Distribute or sell any of this Data to third parties in any form.
PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, DATA & GIS MAPPING TEAM

Path: LACGM\AVL 2013\AVL draft prop map 2013\AVL Proposal map 2014\Revised older persons housing maps aug 15\AV111 with green belt.mxd

Scale: 7.500 Date: 16/02/2016

= CITY COUNCIL



This page is intentionally left blank



Site 21 Minerals 13 (3)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019567 You are not permitted to copy, Sub-Licence, Distribute or sell any of this Data to third parties in any form.

PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, DATA & GIS MAPPING TEAM

Path: LACGM\AVL 2013\AVL draft prop map 2013\AVL Proposal map 2014\Revised older persons housing maps aug 15\AV40 Bridgewater Road leeds.mxd

Scale: 6,200

Date: 16/02/2016

VIS TAV96 . @::AV34y ’ : e
Rt a St | /Av42 N </ /4 PLAN 2 Site AV40 Bridgewater Road North
Y ‘. AN\ E » N AV38 :
S ) \ . A AVES 7k
5 = g \ £> AV55 |
\_ = /
- /AVT70
5§ , )
‘ a2 T ANCONHUNSLET WH A o S ) h
WS T CXNSRIVERSIDE A .
Ao \ AVA1 | TGS N TA X
E,. : - R
— S AV40 A // :
__~::-‘;.‘.‘ _—_—_—_—_——-:J/O i § ‘ R " 4 ; ; 4 /:
? : . ' : § RN AV40 Bridgewater WS AN
: : Road North 3 4
‘E| Yarn A
AvaG| ¢ 4 /AV66
CROSS‘GREEN S N

Allocation for railway sidings
SRS
*
...... S p o " e
(XXX :’?‘.ii ¢ : o .E; v." KEY |
NG / @ L] NRswLP sites H
Xt : " Allocation, Housing [
\ . o ¥
SO : FNY - Identified Housing H
Pulatss X S B RN, ~STTTTTIIINIT yrrrerert




This page is intentionally left blank



y " amy ST I

PLAN 3 Site AV94 South Bank Planning Statement Area

4R \\ f = \““ \

uuuuu

TTTTT

uuuuuuuuuuuuuu

"l Ruth Gorse |\
Academy

, (under

' | |construction)

3 i
DUCA'I:I/ON

HS2 construction

area station

\ -3 D Former Tetley's Brewery site

SR \ B T o~y T AVID
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019567 You are not permitted to copy, Sub-Licence, Distribute or sell any of this Data to third parties in any form. foA- et
PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, DATA & GIS MAPPING TEAM "'K Leeds

TNy

Path: LACGM\AVL 2013\AVL draft prop map 2013\AVL Proposal map 2014\Revised older persons housing maps aug 15\AV94 Former Tetley brewery.mxd Scale: 4000 Date: 16/02/2016 2 oty councit




This page is intentionally left blank



|0 = f Z — —

2] o N N el b 3 N ..".| PLAN 4 Site AV100 Haigh Park Road, Stourton
SRR SRS T e F'__ | submitter's site and draft AVLAAP and
. R TN \ .| NR&WLP allocations/designations
HRBEED Hhs e, (T o SN < ‘\**:‘\\ TS /
BRI (- ab N \j(\') / AV91
. Y ) o o e N Y . -~ oy 8
RS Y (/A Sit 200/> / v,
B 7 o st 200 A7\ % ,
£ nsahnnh Strategic S NN EXT

Waste site / \ \

11.1 Ha R

Site 20 Py

Minerals 13 (2) AV67

S~ ei@’ Allocation - N /
A& ) for canal wharf %%\\\7 TA
2.83 Ha \\§7 o
2, : % .
4 \ YAV74 ; ‘5 7 &
AN <A
\ 7 F AV64

n:
=] :
O
c
A
—I
20
Z

/

|

7 - St Site 14
A s==1F¥! Minerals 13 (1)
D - AL R RSN Safeguarded railway sidings
“a AV72 B - A and canal wharves
e : A it 3 -1 4.03 Ha
3 E cessesoiiiiiiiiiiie
/ 'b‘ o // eeseccecssssccccsose

AV100 Haigh Park Road
(Submitter's proposed site)

|| NR&WLP sites

m Allocation, General Employment

) m m Y[ P shess ‘ Identified General Employment
\ [ S A X R . : — = ‘, “:\‘

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019567 You are not permitted to copy, Sub-Licence, Distribute or sell any of this Data to third parties in any form. BRI
PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, DATA & GIS MAPPING TEAM % Leed
Path: LACGM\AVL 2013\AVL draft prop map 2013\AVL Proposal map 2014\Revised older persons housing maps aug 15\AV100 version 2.mxd Scale: 8,000 Date: 16/02/2016 = CITY COUNCIL

| 38.1 HA

o
D)

Q

.

.

0

.

.

.

0!
cescopesn




This page is intentionally left blank



7 >4
¥ ( (/:J/ <. | PLAN 5 Site AV68 Skelton Grange South
N | showing existing & new proposed amendments

AV68
existing site
area
7.3 Ha

: AV68 new i
:::] overall site area}::::
9.17 Ha

{1 AV68 new proposed amended
A boundary extension to the site f::
-:]site area 1.87 Ha

e Greenlnfrastructure will be deleted
:::t4due to AV68 boundary extension

m Allocation, General Employment

__ Identified General Employment
: i / R A e e T A e 3y T I VY " /aAD I
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019567 You are not permitted to copy, Sub-Licence, Distribute or sell any of this Data to third parties in any form. e

PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, DATA & GIS MAPPING TEAM
Path: LACGM\AVL 2013\AVL draft prop map 2013\AVL Proposal map 2014\Revised older persons housing maps aug 15\AV68 before & after changes.mxd Scale: 5,000 Date: 16/02/2016

LN




This page is intentionally left blank



PLAN 6 Site AV83 Skelton Grange Road showing existing
and changed boundary amendments

%9 &/

P~ Site 20 Minerals 13 (2)
-] Allocation for canal wharf

Works

ed \:\!

Works

-

71 AV83 showing remaining )
site area

Factory

>

%,

KEY

O. @ \Tank

m Allocation, General Employment

Identified General Employment

Y Works \ \\ e\coeocee Qecosivosonese

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019567 You are not permitted to copy, Sub-Licence, Distribute or sell any of this Data to third parties in any form.
PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, DATA & GIS MAPPING TEAM

sl

Path: LACGM\AVL 2013\AVL draft prop map 2013\AVL Proposal map 2014\Revised older persons housing maps aug 15\AV83 before & after changes.mxd Scale: 2500 Date: 16/02/2016 i CITY COUNCIL



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	7 Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan
	Plan 1
	Plan 2
	Plan 3
	Plan 4
	Plan 5
	Plan 6


